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LIVE FLEET TRACKING

NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that pursuant to the Order of the Honourable Islamabad High
Court, Islamabad dated February 27, 2025, passed in Application bearing C. M. No. 2 of
2025, in Petition bearing Company Original No. 3 of 2025, an Extraordinary General
Meeting (“EOGM”) of Secure Logistics Group Limited (the “Company”) will be held at,
and conducted from, the Islamabad Stock Exchange Board Room, Ground Floor, 55-8,

ISE Tower, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad, on Friday, March 28, 2025 at 3:00 p.m., to
transact the following business:

A. Special Business

Pursuant to the Order of the Honourable Islamabad High Court, Islamabad dated
February 27, 2025, passed in Application bearing C. M. No. 2 of 2025, in Petition bearing
Company Original No. 3 of 2025, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification, the following resolution for, inter alia (i) the corporate reorganization / re-
arrangement of the entire shareholding of Trax Online (Private) Limited, comprising the
vesting of the same in the Company; and (ii) the corporate reorganization of the
Company, involving converting certain shareholder’s loans into shares of the Company,
along with all ancillary matters thereto, in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement
dated February 24, 2025, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on
February 4, 2025.

The proposed resolution to be passed by the requisite majority of members of the
Company under Sections 279 and 282 of the Companies Act, 2017 is as under:

“RESOLVED THAT the Scheme of Arrangement dated February 24, 2025,
prepared under the provisions of Sections 279 to 283 and 285(8) of the
Companies Act, 2017, as opproved by the Board of Directors, for, inter alia (i)
the corporate reorganization / re-arrangement of the entire shareholding of
Trax Online (Private) Limited, comprising the vesting of the same in Secure
Logistics Group Limited (the “Company”); ond (i) the corporate
reorganization of the Company, involving converting certain shareholder’s
loans into shares of the Company, along with all ancillary and incidental
matters thereto, placed before the meeting for consideration and approval,
be and is hereby approved and adopted, along with any modifications /
amendments required, or conditions imposed by Honourable Islamabad High
Court, Islomabad, subject to sanction by the Honourable Islomabad High
Court, Islamabad, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017."

B. Other Business

To transact any other business that may be placed before the meeting with the

permission of the Chair,
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Coples of the (a) Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the Companies
Act, 2017 concerning the Special Business; (b) Statement under Section 281 of the
Companies Act, 2017; (c) Scheme of Arrangement; (d) Letter dated February 14, 2025,
issued by BDO Ebrahim & Co,, Chartered Accountants; and (e) Specially audited
financial statements of the Company for the period ended September 30, 2024, are
being circulated to the members along with this notice of the EOGM.

By the Order of the Board
1"-/' 01‘!',: .

Faisal Atta
Company Secretary

Islamabad: March 7, 2025



Notes:

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from March 21, 2025 to
March 28, 2025 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the
Company’s share registrar: Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House,
99-B, Block “B", S.M.C.H.5, Main Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi, by the close of business on
March 20, 2025 will be treated in time for the determination of entitlement of members
to attend and vote at the EOGM.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the EOGM may appoint
another member as his / her proxy who shall have such rights as respects attending,
speaking and voting at the EOGM as are available to a member. A member shall not be
entitled to appoint more than one proxy. A proxy need not be a member of the
Company.

Procedure Including the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. |- Reference No. 3(5-A)
Misc/ARO/LES/96 dated January 26, 2000 issued by Securities & Exchange Commission
of Pakistan:

(i) Members, proxies or nominees shall authenticate their identity by showing
their original national identity card or original passport and bring their folio
numbers at the time of attending the EOGM.

(i) In the case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of
attorney and attested copy of the CNIC or passport of the nominee shall also be
produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

(iii) In order to be effective, the proxy forms must be received at the office of the
Company’s Share Registrar or the registered office of the Company, not later
than 48 hours before the meeting, duly signed and stamped and witnessed by
two persons with their names, address, CNIC numbers and signatures.

(iv) In the case of individuals, attested coples of CNIC or passport of the beneficial
owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

(v) In the case of proxy by a corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution /
power of attorney and attested copy of the CNIC or passport of the proxy shall
be submitted along with proxy form.

Online Participation in the Extraordinary General Meeting

In order to maximize the member’s participation, the Company is convening this EOGM
via video link in addition to holding physical meeting with the members. Accordingly,
those members and permitted participants who desire online participation in the EOGM
are requested to register themselves by sending an email along with following
particulars and valid copy of both sides of their CNIC at investorrelation@slg.com.pk
with subject of * EOGM of Secure Logistics Group Limited’ not less than 48 hours before
the time of the meeting:

Name of Member | CNIC No. |Folio No. / CDC Account No. | Cell No. | Email Address




Video Link to join the EOGM will be shared with only those members whose email,
containing all the required and correct particulars, are timely received at
investorrelation@slg.com.pk. The members can also provide their comments and
questions for the agenda items of the EOGM on this email address.

Provision of Video Link Facility:

If the Company receives a demand (at least 7 days before the date of meeting) from
shareholder(s) holding an aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in any other
city, to participate in the EOGM through video link, the Company will arrange video link
facility in that city (subject to zvailability thereof in such city).

Members, who wish to participate through video-link facility, are requested to fill in
Video Link Facility Form available at Company's website and send a duly signed copy to
the registered address of the Company, situated at 10™ Floor, New State Life Tower,
Blue Area, Islamabad Capital Territory, Islamabad. It may be noted that no person other
than the member or proxy holder can attend the meeting through video link facility.

Polling booth will be established at the place of physical gathering of the EOGM for
voting.

E-Voting / Postal Ballot

Members are hereby notified that pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot)
Regulations, 2018, read with Sections 143-144 of the Companies Act, 2017, and SRO
2192(1)/2022 dated December 5, 2022, members will be allowed to exercise their right
to vote for the special business in accordance with the conditions mentioned therein.
The following options are being provided to members for voting:

(i) E-Voting Procedure

(a) Detalls of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with
those members of the Company who have their valid CNIC numbers,
cell numbers, and e-mail addresses available in the register of
members of the Company by the close of business on March 20, 2025.

(b) The web address, login details and password will be communicated to
members via emall. The security codes will be communicated to
members through SMS and email from web portal of the e-voting
service provider.

(c) Identity of the members intending to cast vote through E-Voting shall
be authenticated through electronic signature or authentication for
login.

(d) E-Voting lines will start from March 24, 2025, 9:00 a.m, and shall close
on March 27, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. Members can cast their votes any time
during this period. Once the vote on a resolution Is cast by a member,
he / she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

(i) Postal Ballot

{a) Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot. Ballot
Paper shall also be available for download from the website of the



Company at www.slg.com.pk or use the same as annexed to this
Notice and published in newspapers.

(b) The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper,
along with copy of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) should
reach the Company through post at 10" Floor, New State Life Tower,
Blue Area, Islamabad Capital Territory, lslamabad (Attention of the
Company Secretary) OR through the registered email address of the
member at investorrelation@slg.com.pk with subject of ‘EOGM of
Secure Logistics Group Limited’ by March 27, 2025 before 5:00 p.m.
The signature on the ballot paper shall match with the signature on
CNIC. A postal ballot received after this time / date shall not be
considered for voting.

(c) Please note that In case of any dispute in voting including the casting
of more than one vote, the Chairman of the meeting shall be the

deciding autl"mﬂty. )

Provision of Information by Members:

To comply with various statutory requirements, and to avoid any non-compliance of law
or any inconvenience in future, all members are hereby advised to coordinate / update
their records with their respective Participant / CDC Investor Account Services / the
Company’s Share Registrar in connection with following:

. Submission of copies of their valid / updated CNIC / NTN Certificate / Zakat
Declaration (Exemption) Form / Tax Exemption Certificate;

Provision of relevant details including valid bank account details / IBAN in order to
enable the Company to pay any unelaimed / future cash dividends, if any

- In case of a Joint account, provision of shareholding proportions between Principal
shareholder and Joint Holder(s)

. Convert their physical shares into scrip less form, which will also facilitate the
members having physical shares in many ways, including safe custody, efficient
trading and convenierice in other corporate actions.

. Provision of mandatory registration details in terms of Section 119 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 19 of the Companies (General Provisions and
Forms) Regulations, 2018, including mobile number / landline number and email

address (if available).
promptly notify any change in mailing address, email address and mobile number
by writing to the office of the Company’s Share Registrar.

Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company; Statement
under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 in respect of the material facts of the
special business; Statement under Section 281 of the Companies Act, 2017; Scheme of
Arrangement dated February 24, 2025; Letter dated February 14, 2025, issued by BDO
Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants; the annual audited financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended December 31, 2023; the specially audited financlal
statements of the Company for the period ended September 30, 2024, and any other
information relevant to the special business in respect of the Company shall be available
upon request, and for inspection, by any person entitled to attend the EOGM from the
registered office of the Company, located at 10™ Floor, New State Life Tower, Blue Area,
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Islamabad Capital Territory, Islamabad, free of cost during normal office hours, from the
date of this notice till the conclusion of the EOGM. The sald information shall also be
placed for inspection of members of the Company during the EOGM.

The notice of the EOGM along with the statements, the Scheme of Arrangement, the
latest annual audited financial statements, and the specially audited financial
statements of the Company have also been placed on the website of the Company.



Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companles Act, 2017 concerning the Special
Business to be transacted at the Extraordinary General Meeting of Secure Logistics
Group Limited

The Board of Directors of Secure Logistics Group Limited (the “Company”), in its meeting held on
February 4, 2025, has decided to enter Into an arrangement with Trax Online (Private) Limited
(“Trax"), which shall be carried out, and effectuated, in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement
between the companies and their respective members, dated February 24, 2025 (the “Scheme of
Arrangement”) under Sections 279 to 283 and 285(8) of the Companies Act, 2017 (the “Act”).

Capitalized terms, unless defined herein, shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Scheme
of Arrangement.

Subject to the sanction of the Honourable Islamabad High Court, Islamabad, under the Scheme of
Arrangement:

(i) the entire Issued and paid up share capital of Trax, comprising 65,190,000 (Sixty Five
Million One Hundred Ninety Thousand) ordinary shares having face value of PKR 10/-
{Pak Rupees Ten) each (the “Trax Arrangement Shares”), held by the shareholders of
Trax, shall stand cancelled, and simultaneously, in lieu of the said cancellation, an
equivalent number of ordinary shares of Trax i.e. 65,190,000 (Sixty Five Million One
Hundred Ninety Thousand) shares (the “Trax Re-Organization Shares”) shall be Issued in
favour of the Company, as a result of which Trax shall become a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. In consideration for the same, ordinary shares of the
Company, having face value of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each, shall be issued from
time to time In favour of tne Trax Arrangement Shareholders; and

(ii) there shall be a capital reorganization of the Company, in terms of which the
sharehalder’s loans provided to the Company by Mr. Pervaiz Afzal Khan (“PAK”) (being a
shareholder and director of the Company), shall be converted Into ordinary shares of
the Company,

in each case, with effect from the start of business at 00:00 hours on October 1, 2024, or such
other date as may be stated by the Court (the “Arrangement”).

The proposed Arrangement, along with all ancillary and related matters thereto, shall be
effective by way of the Scheme of Arrangement, which has been filed with the Islamabad High
Court, Islamabad vide Petition bearing Company Original No. 3 of 2025. Furthermore, in
accordance with the directions of the Court, notice of the said petition has been provided to the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

A copy of the Scheme of Arrangement Is available for inspection to any person entitled to attend
the Extraordinary General Meeting, at the registered office of the Company, situated at 10"
Floor, New State Life Tower, Blue Area, Islamabad Capital Territory, Islamabad, free of cost during
normal office hours. Copies of the same may also be obtained upon request by such persons from
the registered office of the Company free of cost during normal office hours. Furthermore, In
accordance with the provisions of Section 282(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, a copy of the Scheme
of Arrangement has been enclosed with the notice of the meeting circulated to the members of the
Company.



The objects and benefits of the Arrangement are also provided In detail in the Scheme of
Arrangement.

The details pertaining to the comrnercial arrangements forming part, and / or in consideration, of
the Arrangement, are detailed in the Scheme of Arrangement, which are summarized below:

U]

(i)

The shareholder’s loans provided by PAK to the Company, in the aggregate amount of
PKR 344,448,998/- (Pak Rupees Three Hundred Forty Four Million Four Hundred Forty
Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Eight) comprising: (a) the finance facility provided
by Habib Bank Limited to the Company in the aggregate amount of PKR 310,000,000/
(Pak Rupees Three Hundred Ten Million (which is backed by a stand by letter of credit
arranged by PAK, and which loan / facility shall be assumed by PAK (and assigned In
favour of PAK) against the full release and discharge of the Company’s obligations
towards Habib Bank Limited); and (b) cash tranche and mark-up thereof aggregating
PKR 34,448,598 (Pak Rupees Thirty Four Million Four Hundred Forty Eight Thousand
Nine Hundred Ninety Eight), shall be converted into equity / ordinary shares of the
Company @ approximately PKR 12.75/- (Pak Rupees Twelve and Seventy Five Paisas)
per ordinary share, based on a discount of approximately 15% (fifteen percent) of the
market value of the Company’s ordinary shares on February 4, 2025 (i.e. the date of the
Board's approval).

The conversion of shareholder's loan is similar to the conversions carried out by two
other substantial shareholders of the Company, i.e. Karanzaz Pakistan and KBP Limited,
as part of the pre-IPO transaction in April 2024. The aforementioned conversion is also
expected to help the Company to further improve its leverage ratios and, at the current
borrowing rates, save appraximately PKR 40 to 45 million annually in mark-up / profit

payments.

Accordingly, the Company shall allot and issue an aggregate of 27,015,608 (Twenty
Seven Million Fifteen Thousand Six Hundred Eight) ordinary shares In favour of PAK (and
/ or his nominee(s).

The same is part of the commercial arrangement / objective reached with Trax, which
will remove the aforementioned liabilities from the books / accounts of the Company.

In consideration of the cancellation of the Trax Arrangement Shares (held by the Trax
Arrangement Shareholders), and the issuance of the Trax Re-organization Shares in
favour of the Company, the following consideration shall be pravided to the Trax
Arrangement Shareholders from time to time, in each case in accordance with the
provisions of the Scheme of Arrangement:

(a) Upon the sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement, the Company shall allot and
issue an apgregate of 116,921,307 (One Hundred Sixteen Million Nine Hundred
Twenty One Thousand Three Hundred Seven) ordinary shares in favour of the
Trax Arrangement Shareholders, credited as fully paid up, at par, on the basis
of a swap ratio of approximately 1.794 ordinary shares of the Company for
every 1 (one) Trax Arrangement Share, held by each Trax Arrangement
Shareholder (which shall stand cancelled), subject to the adjustment of
fractional shares.

{b) Subsequently, and subject to the fulfilment of certain key performance
indicators (as detailed in the Scheme of Arrangement) by Trax by the KPI
Achievement Date, the Company shall allot and issue up to 12,003,245 (Twelve
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Million Three Thousand Two Hundred Forty Five) ordinary shares in favour of
the Trax Arrangement Shareholders credited as fully paid up, at par.

It is emphasizea that the allotment and Issuance of such additional ordinary
shares is provisional and subject to the achievement of the stipulated KPIs. In
accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, a lower number of ordinary
shares of the Company may be issued if the same are only partially achieved,
thus ensuring that the shareholders of the Company remain protected.

(c) Additionally, as part of the commercial understanding between the companies,
the Board of Directors of the Company intends to formulate and implement an
employee stock option scheme, in terms of which the Company shall offer, and
subsequently {upon the subscription thereof) issue, ordinary shares in favour of
its employees and employees of group companies, which shall constitute 3%
(three percent) of the issued and paid up share capital of the Company (on a
fully diluted basis) (“ESOS Shares”). The said employee stock option scheme
shall be developed by the Board of Directors of the Company, and shall be
subject to requisite corporate and regulatory approvals (including from the
members of the Company); approval of the Scheme of Arrangement shall
constitute an in-principle approval for the issuance of the ESOS Shares.

Consequently, as part of the consideration, as and when ESOS Shares are
issued by the Company (from time to time) pursuant to the said employee
stock option scheme, the Company shall simultaneously allot and issue
additional ordinary Shares in favour of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders,
credited as fully paid up, at par, of such quantum so as to maintain their
respective shareholding ratios, existing as a consequence of the issuance of
ordinary shares of the Company in accordance with paras (a) and (b) above (i.e.
as per the Scheme of Arrangement).

Furthermore, pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement, and in accordance with
the terms thereof:

U]

(i)

the authorized share capital of the Company shall stand enhanced from PKR
2,750,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Two Billion Seven Hundred Fifty Million) to PKR
4,250,000,000/- {Pak Rupees Four Billion Two Hundred Fifty Million), divided into
425,000,000 (Four Hundred Twenty Five Million) ordinary shares of PKR 10/- (Pak
Rupees Ten) each, subje:t to the payment of the requisite fee. The Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company shall stand amended in terms of the Scheme of
Arrangement in this respect; and

the compasition of the Board of Directors of the Company shall automatically be
increased from 7 (seven) to 9 (nine) directors for the remaining term of the Board of
Directors, which additional vecancies shall be filled by the persons nominated by the
Trax Arrangement Shareholders. The Company shall ensure compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance, including to Induct the requisite number of independent
directors.

Approval of the Scheme of Arrangement by the members of the Company shall include and
constitute and approval for all matters thereunder, including by way of special resolution.

The directors of the Company are interested in the Scheme of Arrangement to the extent of their
directorships and shareholdings in the Company (to the extent applicable). The effect of the
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Scheme of Arrangement on the Interests of these directors does not differ from its effect on the
like interests of other members, except as stated herein or under the Scheme of Arrangement. In
this respect it may be noted (as stated in Article 5.5, of the Scheme of Arrangement) that PAK is a
director of the Company, who Is entitled to ordinary shares of the Company against the
converston of the shareholder's loans provided by him, in the manner detalled in the Scheme of
Arrangement, and as stipulated above.

In view of the above, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved and recommended

the Scheme of Arrangement, along with the arrangements stipulated thereunder which have
been described abave.

Statement under Section 281 of the Companies Act, 2017 concerning the Special
Business

The statement setting forth the terms of the Scheme of Arrangement and explanation of its
effects, including the interests of the directors of the Company and the effect of those interests
and other ancillary information may be abtained upon request by any person entitled to attend
the Extraordinary General Meeting from the registered office of the Company situated at 10"
Floor, New State Life Tower, Blue Area, Islamabad Capital Territory, Islamabad, free of cost
during normal office hours,

The aforesaid statement is also enclosed along with this notice of the Extraordinary General
Meeting.

s\

Gulraiz Khan
CEO
SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED

Islamabad
Dated: March 7, 2025



STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 281(1)(A) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017, ACCOMPANYING THE
NOTICES TO THE MEMBERS AND SECURED CREDITORS OF SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED

Pursuant to the Order dated February 27, 2025, passed by the Honourable Islamabad High Court, Islamabad
in Application bearing C. M. No. 2 of 2025, in Petition bearing Company Original No. 3 of 2025, under
Sections 279 to 283 and 285(8) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Court has directed, inter alia, that separate
meetings of the members and secured creditors of Secure Logistics Group Limited (the "Company”) be
convened for seeking approval with respect to the Scheme of Arrangement dated February 24, 2025
("Scheme of Arrangement”), pertaining to the arrangements between the Company and Trax Online
(Private) Limited {“Trax"), inter alia, involving:

(i the reorganization / re-arrangement of the entire shareholding of Trax, in terms of which its issued
and paid up share capital, comprising 65,190,000 (Sixty Five Million One Hundred Ninety Thousand)
ordinary shares having face value of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each (the “Trax Arrangement
Shares”), held by the shareholders of Trax, shall stand cancelled, and simultaneously, in lieu of the
sald cancellation, an equivalent number of ordinary shares of Trax |.e. 65,190,000 (Sixty Five Million
One Hundred Ninety Thousand) shares (the “Trax Re-Organization Shares”) shall be Issued in favour
of the Company, as a result of which Trax shall become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
In consideration for the same, ordinary shares of the Company, having face value of PKR 10/- (Pak
Rupees Ten) each, shall be issued’ from time to time in favour of the Trax Arrangement
Shareholders; and

(i) there shall be a capital reorganization of the Company, in terms of which the shareholder’s loans
provided to the Company by Mr, Pervalz Afzal Khan (“PAK") (being a shareholder and director of the
Company), shall be converted into ordinary shares of the Company,

(collectively referred to as the “Arrangement”), along with all ancillary matters thereto, as approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company on February 4, 2025.

Capitalized terms, unless defined herein, shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Scheme of
Arrangement.

A copy of the Scheme of Arrangement (along with its annexures) may be obtained from the registered office
of the Company, situated at 10" Floor, New State Life Tower, Blue Area, Islamabad Capital Territory,
Islamabad, free of cost during normal business hours. Furthermore, a copy of the Scheme of Arrangement has
been / shall be enclosed with the notices of the respective meeting drculated / to be circulated to the members
and secured creditors of the Company.

The notices issued and published to the members of the Company are for the purpose of convening a
meeting of the members of the Company, as directed by the Court, for the purpese of passing, inter alia, the
following resolution for obtaining approval in respect of the Scheme of Arrangement and the Arrangement
contemplated thereunder, along with ancillary matters:

“RESOLVED THAT the Scheme of Arrangement dated February 24, 2025, prepared under the
provisions of Sections 279 to 283 and 285(8} of the Companies Act, 2017, as approved by the
Board of Directors, for, inter alia (i) the corporate reorganization / re-arrangement of the entire
shareholding of Trax Onlfine (Private) Limited, comprising the vesting of the same In Secure
Logistics Group Limited (the "Company”); and (ii) the corporate reorganiration of the Company,
involving converting certain shareholder’s loans into shares of the Company, along with oll
ancillary and incidental matters thereto, placed before the meeting for consideration and
opproval, be and is hereby approved and adopted, along with any modifications / amendments
required, or conditions imposed by Honourable Islamabad High Court, Islamabad, subject to
sanction by the Honourable Islamabad High Court, Islamabad, in terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017.*

As required under section 279(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, the above resolution is required to be passed
at the meeting of the members convened pursuant to the Order of the Court, by a majority representing



three-fourths In value of the Issued shares held by the members of the Company, present In person or by
proxy, and voting at the Extraordinary General Meeting. The sanctioning of the Scheme of Arrangement and
the making of other appropriate orders In connection therewith will be considered by the Court after the
Scheme of Arrangement Is approved as aforesaid,

In the manner prayed In terms of the application filed with the Court, the Court has approved Mr. Gulraiz A.
Khan, or In his absence, any director of the Company, to chalr the meeting of the members, who shall submit
the requisite report thereof to the Court In accordance with the applicable laws.

The notices Issued / to be Issued to the secured creditors of the Company are for the purpose of convening a
meeting of the secured creditors of the Company, as directed by the Court, for the purpose of obtaining their
approval In respect of the Scheme of Arrangement and the Arrangement contemplated thereunder, With
respect to the secured creditors of the Company, under section 279(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, the
Scheme of Arrangement Is required to be approved by three-fourths of the creditors (in value), present and
voting at the meeting of the secured creditors (through thelr authorized representatives).

In the manner prayed in terms of the application filed with the Court, the Court has approved Mr. Imad
Sheikh, or In his absence, Mr. Irfan Hafeez, to chair the meeting of the secured creditors, who shall submit
the requisite report thereof to the Court In accordance with the applicable laws.

The Scheme of Arrangement Is subject to the sanction of the Court and may be sanctioned In its present
form or with any modification thereof or addition thereto as the Court may approve and the Scheme of
Arrangement, with such modification or addition If any, Is also subject to any conditions which the Court may
impose. The respective Boards of Directors of the Company and Trax have the power (in the manner
specified under the Scheme of Arrangement) to consent on behalf of all concerned to any modifications of,
or additions to, the Scheme of Arrangement, or to any conditions which the Court may think fit to impose.
Furthermore, the Company and Trax shall also take steps to meet the necessary regulatory conditions /
obtain requisite third party approvals, as may be required under the applicable laws.

The Scheme of Arrangement has been flled with the Islamabad High Court, Islamabad vide Petition bearing
Company Original No. 3 of 2025. Furthermore, In accordance with the directions of the Court, notice of the
said petition has been provided to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Companles involved In the Scheme of Arrangement

Secure Logistlcs Group

The Company Is a public company, the ordinary shares of which are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited. The Company was Incorporated as ‘Asla Capital Partners (Private) Limited’ on April 18, 2013, the
name of which was changed to ‘Secure Logistics Group (Private) Limited' on August 24, 2016. Thereafter, the
status of the Company was changed from a private to a public company with effect from September 15,
2021,

The Company has an authorlzed share capital of PKR 2,750,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Two Billion Seven Hundred
Fifty Million), divided Into 275,000,000 (Twe Hundred Seventy Five Million) ordinary shares of PKR 10/- {Pak

Rupees Ten) each, out of which 273,639,181 (Two Hundred Seventy Three Million Six Hundred Thirty Nine
Thousand One Hundred Eighty One) ordinary shares have been Issued, fully subscribed to and paid up.

The principal line of business of the Company Involves logistics and tracking, along with fleet management
services.

Trax Online (Private) Limited
Trax Is a private company limited by shares, incorporated on September 14, 2017,

It has an authorized share capital of PKR 700,000,000/ (Pak Rupees Seven Hundred Million), divided into
70,000,000 (Seventy Million) ordinary shares of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each, out of which 65,190,000



(Sixty Five Million One Hundred Ninety Thousand) ordinary shares have been issued, fully subscribed to and
paid up.

The principal activity of Trax s to carry on the business of logistics.
Brief of the Scheme of Arrangement
Summary and Objective

The principal object of the Scheme of Arrangement Is, inter alia, to effect the Arrangement, as further
detailed in the Scheme of Arrangement, with effect from the start of business at 00:00 hours on October 1,
2024, or such other date as may be stated by the Court, in the manner stipulated under the Scheme of
Arrangement. As a consequence of the Arrangement, Trax shall become a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, in consideration for which, the ‘Company shall issue ordinary shares to the Trax Arrangement
Shareholders from time to time. Additionally, as part of the Arrangement, certain shareholder’s loans
provided to the Company by PAK shall stand converted into ordinary shares of the Company. Pursuant to the
Scheme of Arrangement, the Company and Trax shall continue to exist as independent companies, without
any company being wound up.

Benefits

The strategic merits of the arrangements under the Scheme of Arrangement are manifold, delivering
immediate and long-term benefits to the Company's shareholders. Due to a range of strategic and tactical
synergies (as also discussed below), the proposed Arrangement offers a unique opportunity to unlock
immediate growth opportunities and maximize the value for the shareholders. For the Company's
shareholders, the Arrangement represents a compelling opportunity to invest in a future-proof business
model that combines operational assets with technological innovation. The integration of Trax’s capabilities
not only further diversifies the Company’s revenue streams (as a group) but also provides a considerable
technological capability. By evolving from a traditional to a tech-based logistic play, the Company is poised to
deliver superior returns through increased scalability, improved margins, and a strengthened competitive
moat.

The Company will, inter alia, contribute through (a) the Company owned fleet; (b) diversified cash flow
stream through distinct yet synergetic business lines of logistics, asset tracking and security services; (c)
experienced team in all of its business lines; (d) unlevered balance sheet; and (e) TIR License — Regional Play.
On other hand, Trax has a country-wide foot-print and a sophisticated suite of capabilities, encompassing
last-mile delivery, e-commerce logistics, warehousing, and international supply chain management, all
underpinned by a cutting-edge technology platform. As such, the Arrangement would enable the Company
to transcend its conventional boundaries, positioning the Company at the forefront of the rapidly growing
logistics technology sector with a comprehensive, end-to-end service offering.

Based on the above, as well as the potential benefits discussed below, the Company’s and Trax's respective
managements have recognised a unique opportunity to enhance shareholder value due to substantial
benefits emanating from the complimentary business lines, expanded operation and synergies. Therefore,
the respective directors of the Company and Trax have considered it prudent and beneficial to carry out and
achieve the Arrangement for the reasons and benefits stipulated in the Scheme of Arrangement. Amongst
the salient benefits, as are also elaborated in detail in the Scheme of Arrangement, the following specific
benefits are highlighted:

Enhancement in Operational Capabilities
(i) The combination will create a 4 PL player with the potential to be a domestic market leader and an

established capacity to expand regionally.

(i) The Arrangement will allow the Company (which will become the holding company of Trax) to
develop and have access to a diversified cash flow stream through the distinct, yet synergetic,
business lines of logistics, asset tracking, warehousing and security services.



(i) Moreover, Trax's scalable platform amplifies the group’s competitive edge, transforming the
Company into a fourth-party logistics (4 PL) provider capable of orchestrating complex supply chains
with precision and agility. This positions the Company to capitalize on emerging opportunities in
Pakistan's logistics sector and beyond, ensuring sustained growth and resilience in an increasingly
digital economy.

Substantial Savings through Syner,

{iv) The combination of the Company’s established infrastructure and Trax's tech-enabled solutions will
drive significant synergies, streamlining processes, eliminating redundancies, and enhancing cost
efficiencies. In light of the business nature of the respective companies, the Arrangement is
expected to enable the companies to benefit from a range of synergles, which would potentially
enhance shareholder value and future profits. These synergies include strategic / business synergies,
supply chain synergies, technological synergies and human resources synergies. The companies
expect that the expanded range of services to be offered by the group and other synergies,
including reduction in overlapping exs and consequently savings will lead to a substantial
enhancement in shareholder value through an enhancement in top and battom-lines.

{v) The Arrangement would enable the companies {as group companies) to reduce and / or share costs
and achieve savings through, inter alia, in-house fleet management, sharing of resources, and
streamlining of expenses in various departments, including human resources, marketing, logistic
operations and infrastructure.

As per preliminary workings, an immediate bottom-line contribution of PKR 329 million has been
identified through synergetic savings. These savings are through removal of overlapping expenses
and streamlining of operations involving both business lines and support functions. Several
identified synergetic Initiatives are already In the process of being (in-principle) implemented, while
remaining will be executed latest by end April 2025 (subject to the sanction of the Scheme of
Arrangement). The impact of synergetic savings is reflected in the proforma financials (forecast for
FY 2025).

Einancial Strengths

{vi) The combination is expected to bolster both revenue growth and profitability, as the group expand
its addressable market to serve over 300 corporate clients and thousands of small-to-medium
enterprises across diverse industries.

{wii) The Arrangement would lead to an increase in the asset base and size of the Company (on a
consolidated basis), since the same will become the holding company of Trax, which would allow
the Company to a combined pool of assets (including a larger fleet for the group companies) and
allow it to structure its group businesses in an organized manner, based on efficient allocation of

resources.

(wiii) The larger size of the Company (as the holding company) would increase its risk absorption capacity
(on a consolidated basis) thus enhancing the capacity to manage the potential risks arising out of
the adverse and uncertain operating environment.

(ix) The conversion of the shareholder’s loans into equity would reduce the liabilities from the books /
accaunts of the Company; furthermore, the fact that the sponsor shareholder is willing to increase
his shareholding in the Company demonstrates his commitment and hope for the Company and the
Arrangement.

{x) Overall, the Arrangement Is likely, in the context of the benefits detailed in the Scheme of
Arrangement, to enhance shareholder value as well as future returns for the shareholders of the
Company. The Company (including through its group companies) will have larger market
capitalization and an improved market position with the potential for better performance, both in
terms of the ability to deploy capital more effectively and manage its resources and operations
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mare efficlently. The Arrangement will allow for more liquidity of shares with respect to the
Company [belng a listed entity), allowing shareholders {especlally minorlty shareholders) to trade In
thelr shares with more ease.

Commerclal Arrangement / Consideratlon

The detalls pertaining to the commerclal arrangements forming part, and / or In consideration, of the
Arrangement, are detalled In the Scheme of Arrangement, which are summarlzed below:

n The shareholder's loans provided by PAK to the Company, In the aggregate amount of PKR
344,448,998/- (Pak Rupees Three Hundred Forty Four Milllon Four Hundred Forty Eight Thousand
Nine Hundred Ninety Eight) comprising: (a) the finance facility provided by Habib Bank Limited to
the Company In the aggregate amount of PKR 310,000,000/ (Pak Rupees Three Hundred Ten
Million (which Is backed by a stand by letter of credit arranged by PAK, and which loan / facility shall
be assumed by PAK (and assigned In favour of PAK) agalnst the full release and discharge of the
Company’s obligations towards Habib Bank Limlted); and (b) cash tranche and mark-up thereof
aggregating PKR 34,448,998 (Pak Rupees Thirty Four Million Four Hundred Forty Eight Thousand
Nine Hundred Ninety Eight), shall be converted Into equity / ordinary shares of the Company @
approximately PKR 12.75/- (Pak Rupees Twelve and Sevenly Five Palsas) per ordinary share, based
on a discount of approximately 15% (fifteen percent) of the market value of the Company’s ordinary
shares on February 4, 2025 (l.e. the date of the Board's approval).

The converslon of shareholder’s loans Is simllar to the conversions carried out by two other
substantial shareholders I.e. Karandaz Pakistan and KBP Limited as part of the pre-IPO transaction In
April 2024, The sald conversion Is expected to help the Company to further Improve its leverage
ratlos and, at the current borrowing rates, save approximately PKR 40 to 45 milllon annually In
mark-up / profit payments.

Accordingly, the Company shall allot and Issue an aggregate of 27,015,608 (Twenty Seven Million
Fifteen Thousand Six Hundred Eight) ordinary shares in favour of PAK (and / or his nominee(s).

The same Is part of the commercial arrangement / objective reached with Trax, which will remove
the aforementloned liabilities from the books / accounts of the Company.

(1) In consideration of the cancellation of the Trax Arrangement Shares (held by the Trax Arrangement
Shareholders), and the Issuance of the Trax Re-organization Shares In favour of the Company, the
following consideration shall be provided to the Trax Arrangement Shareholders from time to time,
In each case In accordance with the provisions of the Scheme of Arrangement:

(a) Upon the sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement, the Company shall allot and Issue an
apgregate of 116,921,307 (One Hundred Sixteen Million Nine Hundred Twenty One
Thousand Three Hundred Seven) ordinary shares In favour of the Trax Arrangement
Shareholders, credited as fully pald up, at par, on the basis of a swap ratlo of approximately
1.794 ordinary shares of the Company for every 1 (one) Trax Arrangement Share, held by
each Trax Arrangement Shareholder (which shall stand cancelled), subject to the
adjustment of fractional shares.

The sald swap ratic has been determined and approved by the respective Board of
Directors of the Company and Trax from the range provided and confirmed In the letter
dated February 14, 2025, Issued by BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, which Is in-
turn based on the calculations and valuations detalled thereln. The falr value assessment,
as detalled In the sald letter, has been performed under the Income based approach and
market based approach, with the valuation cut-off as of September 30, 2024, based, Inter
olla, on the special purpose financlal statements of the respective companles for the period
ended September 30, 2024, financlal projections of the companles and other related
Infermation, Including the assumptlons provided by the companles.



{b) Subsequently, and subject to the fulfilment of certain key performance indicators (as
detailed in the Scheme of Arrangement) by Trax by the KPI Achievement Date, the
Company shall allot and issue up to 12,003,245 (Twelve Million Three Thousand Two
Hundred Forty Five) ordinary shares in favour of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders
credited as fully paid up, at par.

It may be noted that the allotment and issuance of such additional ordinary shares is
provisional and subject to the achievement of the stipulated KPIs. In accordance with the
Scheme of Arrangement, 2 lower number of ordinary shares of the Company may be Issued
by the Company in favour of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders if the same are only
partially achieved, thus ensuring that the shareholders of the Company remain protected,

(3] Additionally, as part of the commercial understanding between the companies, the Board
of Directors of the Company intends to formulate and implement an employee stock
option scheme, in terms of which the Company shall offer, and subsequently (upon the
subscription thereof) issue, ordinary shares in favour of its employees and employees of
group companies, which shall constitute 3% (three percent) of the issued and paid up share
capital of the Company (on a fully diluted basis) (“ESOS Shares®). The said employee stock
option scheme shall be developed by the Board of Directors of the Company, and shall be
subject to requisite corporate and regulatory approvals (including from the members of the
Company); approval of the Scheme of Arrangement shall constitute an in-principle
approval far the issuance of the ESOS Shares.

Consequently, as part of the consideration, as and when ESOS Shares are issued by the
Company (from timé to time) pursuant to the said employee stock option scheme, the
Company shall simultaneously allot and issue additional ordinary Shares in favour of the
Trax Arrangement Shareholders, credited as fully paid up, at par, of such quantum so as to
maintain their respective shareholding ratios, existing as a consequence of the issuance of
ordinary shares of the Company in accordance with paras (a) and (b) above (i.e. as per the
Scheme of Arrangement).

Effect on Shareholding Structure and Profitability

As a consequence of the above, upon the sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement, initially pursuant to the
issuance of shares under (i) and (ii){a) above, the issued and paid up share capital of the Company shall
increase from PKR 2,736,391,810/- (Pak Rupees Two Billion Seven Hundred Thirty Six Million Three Hundred
Ninety One Thousand Eight Hundred Ten) to PKR 4,175,760,960/- (Pak Rupees Four Billion One Hundred
Seventy Five Million Seven Hundred Sixty Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty). Thereafter, the issuance of
additional shares of the Company shall be dependent upon fulfilment of the KPIs and the issuance of the
ESOS Shares (as detailed in {ii}{b) and (ii}{c) above respectively.

By leveraging the complementary strengths of both entities, this transaction is expected to yield significant
revenue and profitability enhancements. In FY 2025, the combined entity (including Trax as a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company) is projected to achieve a revenue increase of approximately 200% (3.0x), rising
from approximately PKR 2.4 billion in 2024 to PKR 7.0 billion. This growth s driven by, inter alio, Trax's
expertise in last-mile delivery, e-commerce logistics, and International supply chain solutions, seamlessly
integrated with the Company’s established capabilities in long-haul and distribution services. In FY2025, Net
Income s forecasted to rise to PKR 960 million (by 67% or 1.67x), from approximately PKR 573 million in
2024 (subject to the sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement), reflecting operational efficiencies and an
expanded client portfolio serving over 300 corporate clients and thousands of SMEs. As a result, weighted
earnings per share (EPS) on a fully diluted basls are anticipated to grow by 20% In FY 2025, accounting for
potential dilution arising from the arrangements under the Scheme of Arrangement,

The full realization of the Arrangemeat related synergies in FY 2026 is expected to further accelerate the
Company’s financial performance, with revenue projected to reach PKR 12.1 billion (+72% vs 2025) and net
income potentially doubling to PKR 1.9 billion (+103% vs 2025). This growth is propelled by Trax's state-of-
the-art technology platform, which enhances operational scalability and cost management, while the
Company’s long-haul business continues to thrive through expanded routes and improved logistics
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efficiencles. These comblned strengths are anticipated to Improve EBITDA margins from 20.2% In 2025 to
22.3% In 2026. By 2029, revenue and net Income are forecasted to reach PKR 24.3 and PKR 4.0 billion,
respectively, reflecting a compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) of 60% for revenue and 48% for net
income from 2024 to 2029. These projections underscore the strategic significance of the Arrangement,
positioning SLG as a leading logtech player with a sustainable profitability profile.

The financlal performance summary of Company In last 5 years is attached as Annexure A.

A detalled summary of the five-year forecasted financial performance, accompanied by graphical
illustrations, Is Included In the Annexure B, providing shareholders with a comprehensive understanding of
the Arrangement’s potential to drive long-term value creation,

General

All informatlon / particulars with respect to the Arrangement and matters in respect thereof, including all
ancillary matters thereto, are provided In detall In the Scheme of Arrangement, Including, details of the
companiles, the objects and benefits of the entire arrangement, consideration related matters etc.

Summary of Operating and Financlal Performance of the Company (last 5 years up to last quarter)

The Summary of 5-years historlcal Financial Performance Is given in Annexure B. Please note that the FY2024
financial results are based upon 9-moths audited figures for the period ending September 30, 2024 and a
forecast for the period October-December 2024.

Information pértaining to the Creditors of the Companies

The secured creditors of the Company shall not be affected by the Scheme of Arrangement as the Company
and Trax will continue to exist as independent companies.

The liabilities of the Company towzids PAK le. as a creditor of the Company to the extent of the
shareholder’s loans provided to the Company, shall stand extinguished upon the conversion of the loans Into
shares of the Company, as detailed in the Scheme of Arrangement (and as stipulated above).

Materlal Interests of Directors (If any)

The respective directors of the Company and Trax are interested in the Scheme of Arrangement to the extent
of their respective directorships and (direct and Iindirect) shareholdings in the said companies (to the extent
applicable). The effect of the Scheme of Arrangement on the interests of these directors does not differ from
its effect on the like interests of other members, except as stated herein or under the Scheme of
Arrangement.

In this respect, it may be noted (as stipulated in Article 5.5 of the Scheme of Arrangement):

(] PAK is a director of the Company, who is entitled to ordinary shares of the Company against the
conversion of the shareholder’'s loans provided by him, in the manner detailed in the Scheme of
Arrangement, and as stipulated above; and

(i Mr. Muhammad Hassan Khan and Mr. Asad Abdulla are amongst the Indirect shareholders of the
principal Trax Arrangement Shareholder, in favour of which ordinary shares of the Company shall be
Issued.

Furthermore, subject to the sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement, the respective directors of each of the
Company and Trax are expected to continue as the respective directors of the Company and Trax after the
Arrangement, subject to compliance with the applicable laws and / or their ceasing to be directors in the
meantime due 1o any reason(s) and appointments being made to the vacancles thus created and / or fresh
elections being held prior to the date that the Scheme of Arrangement Is approved by the Court in
compliance with applicable laws. Having sald that, as part of the Scheme of Arrangement, the composition of
the Board of Directors of the Company shall automatically be Increased from 7 (seven) to 9 (nine) directors
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for the remaining term of the Board of Directors, which additional vacancies shall be filled by the persons
nominated by the Trax Arrangement Shareholders.

Risk Factors

The successful completion and integration of the Arrangement between the Company and Trax are subject
to a range of risks and uncertainties that could possibly impact the anticipated timeline, financial outcomes,
and overall benefits to the shareholders, which along with the mitigants are summarized below.

Regulatory Approval Delays

Risk: Prolonged timelines in obtaining approvals from regulatory bodies (e.g., Competition Commission of
Pakistan) or government autherities and sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement, potentlially delaying the
completion of the Arrangement. :

Mitigant: The Company and Trax have engaged experienced legal and regulatory advisors to expedite the
approval process and proactively address potential concerns, ensuring compliance with all requirements.

M E ic Cond
Risk: Adverse macro-economic conditions, such as inflation, currency fluctuation, interest rate movement
and economic slow down, which could impact consumer demand and operational costs.

Mitigant: The merged entity will maintain flexible financial strategies to mitigate the impact of external
economic pressures.

Market and Competitive Pressures

Risk: Shifts in customer demand, intensified competition in logistics and logtech, or economic volatility in
Pakistan and regional markets, impacting revenue growth.

Mitigant: Diversified service offerings post-implementation of the Arrangement and a broadened client base
{over 300 corporates and thousands of SMEs) will enhance resilience, while market analysis ensures adaptive
strategies.

Technology Adoption Risks

Risk: Challenges in scaling Trax's technology across the Company’s operations, potentially limiting efficiency
gains or customer satisfaction.

Mitigant: Joint training programs and phased technology integration, backed by Trax's proven platform, will
minimize adoption hurdles and ensure staff readiness.

AN

A Gulraiz Khan
CEO
SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED

Islamabad
Dated: March 7, 2025



Summary al’ﬂarunidhtu'l Financials - 5LG %

Annexure A

2020 2021 2022 2023 \ 2024

Revenue 1,210,690,811 1,567,893,211 1,669,040,381 2044844978 2.358.771.no—o|
Cost of services (586,523,464) (746,347.373) 876,898,737) (987.624,188)|  (1,183,935,000)
Gross Profit 624,167,347 821,545,838 792,141,644 1.057,220,790 1,174,842,000
GP(%) 52 52 a7 52 50
Administration Expenses (175,186,979) (172,934,822) 212813913) (297.466,937) (187,973.000)
EBITDA 443,980,368 648,611,016 579327731 759,753,853 986,869,000
EBITDA (%) 37 41 35 37 42
Derpreciation and Amortizi {150,342,296) (203,631,429) [200,456,444) (221.252,236) (223,509,000)
Operating Profit 298,638,072 444,579,587 378.871.287 538,501,617 763,360,000

25 28 3 26 32
Other Income 77,983,776 19,765358 25,767,357 15,004,006 22,249,000
Finance Cost {106,205,470) (103,536,628) (139,970,065) 211,020,179) (117,548,000)
Profit Before Tax 270,416,378 361,208317 264668579 342,485,444 668,061,000
Taxation {41,746,256) (77,478,196) 27,584,362 25,531,981 (94,725,000)
PAT 228,670,122 283,730,121 292,252,941 368,017,425 573,336,000




SLG — TRAX Online Consolidated P&L Annexure B

Consolidated Entity (PKR 000) 2024A 2025F 2026F 2027F 2028F 2020F
Revenue 2,358,777 7045845 12,113,532 16,800,082 20,285460 24,364,858
Cost of Service (1,183,935)  (4,185859)  (7.254,641) (10,005,546) (12,116,301) (14,279,358)
Gross Profit 1,174,842 2,859,887 4,858,891 6,794,536 8,169,159 10,085,500
GP (%) 49.8% 40.6% 40.1% 40.4% 40.3% 41.4%
Administrative Expenses (187,973)  (1,433,862)  (2,164,240) (3,161,048) (4.005882) (4.627,114)
EBITDA 986,869 1,426,124 2,604,651 3,633,488 4,163,278 5,458,386
EBITDA(%) 41.8% 20.2% 22.2% 21.6% 20.5% 224%
Depreciation and Amortization (223,508) (300,846) (323,033)  (392,769)  (386,591) (346,117)
Operating profit 763,360 1,125,278 2,371,618 3,240,719 3,776,687 5,112,269
OPM(%%) 32.4% 16.0% 19.6% 19.3% 18.6% 21.0%
Other Income 22249 70,682 B4,544 67,260 79,402 103,966
Finance Costs (117,548) (81,289) (34,170) 9313 (12,287) (12,287)
Profit Before Tax 668,061 1,114,671 2,421,993 3,317,312 3,843,802 5,203,348
Taxation (94,725) (154,699) (474,279)  (T18.877)  (838,502)  (1.163.588)
PAT 573,336 059,972 1,847,714 2,508,335 3,005,300 4,040,360
EPS 2.10° 2.52 4,66 6.22 7.20 9.68
= 2024 BPScalculaled on pre-merger shares

=+ 2025 6P o o wei h
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Annexure B (Cont'd)

Figure: Revenue is expected to grow at a CAGR of 60% through 2024-29
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Figure: Meanwhile EBITDA is expected to grow at a CAGR of 40%
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|—Fi gure: Profit after tax is expected to grow at a CAGR of 48% through 2024-29




Tel: +92 51 260 4461-5 3rd Floor,
Fax: +92 §1 260 4468 Saeed Plaza,
www.bdo.com.pk 21-East Blue Area,

e |stamabad-44000,
Pakistan,

February 14, 2025

Ref: Advisory - 3344/25B

The Board of Directors

Secure Logistics Group Limited
10th Floor, New State Life Tower,
Blue area, Islamabad.

The Board of Directors

Trax Online (Private) Limited

Plot # 9, Street # 07 Sector 1-10/3
Islamabad.

Dear Sir(s),

Proposed Scheme of Arrangement involving Trax Online (Private) Limited and Secure Logistics
Group Limited - Computation of Swap Ratio

With reference to our engagement letter No. F-07/Advisory-3174/24 dated November 5, 2024, we
have been engaged jointly by Trax Online (Private) Limited (Trax) and Secure Logistics Group Limited
(SLG) to assist in the fair value assessment and compilation of a share swap ratio for the proposed
arrangement involving Trax and SLG, under the terms of a Scheme of Arrangement (SoA) under
Sections 279 to 283 and 285(8) of the Companies Act, 2017.

1. About the Companies:

; £ SLG, a public company limited by shares and listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited,
is incorporated, and existing under the laws of Pakistan and having its registered office 108
Floor, New State Life Building, Blue Area, Islamabad Capital Territory, Pakistan,

1.2 Trax, a private company limited by shares, is incorporated and existing under the laws of
Pakistan and having its registered office at Plot # 9, Street # 07 Sector 1-10/3, Islamabad.

2. About the Transaction/Scheme:

24 We understand that SLG and Trax intend to enter into a Scheme of Arrangement in terms of
which the entire sharehalding of Trax shall vest with and intc °LG, against the issuance of
shares of SLG to the shareholders of Trax. As a consequence of tie same, Trax will become a
wholly owned subsidiary of SLG.

2.2 Based on the draft SoA shared with us, all the shares of Trax held by its shareholders shall
stand cancelled and, simultaneously, an equivalent number of shares of Trax shall be issued
in favour of SLG (and its nominee(s)), as a consequence of which, S5LG will get 100%
shareholding of Trax. In consideration of the same, ordinary shares of SLG shall be issued in
favour of the shareholders of Trax based on the swap ratio. The SoA shall be subject to;

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
BOO Ebrahim & Co,, & Pakissan ¢
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art rim, is.a member of BOO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

& of independent member firms.



IBDO

sanction by the Istamabad High Court in accordance with Sections 279/282 of the Companies
Act, 2017.

2.3 In addition to the normal computation of share swap ratio- i.e. the number of shares that
SLG will issue to the shareholders of Trax under the SoA, the parties have also agreed to the
following commercial arrangement to form part of the transaction:

2.3.1  SLG will issue new 27,015,608 ordinary shares @ approximately PKR 12.75 each to Mr. Pervaiz
Khan (PK) or his nominee, under the SoA, against the conversion of a loan provided by PK to
SLG, amounting to PKR 344,448,998, which is appearing in its books as at September 30,
2024,

2.3.2 Trax will issue 35,990,000 ordinary shares @ PKR 10 each, against the conversion of advance
against the issue of shares amounting to PKR 359.9 million to Trax Global Pte. Limited, which
is appearing in its books as of September 30, 2024. This issuance is to take place before filing
the SoA or covered under the Scheme, which 35,990,000 shares are assumed to be issued for
purposes of determining the swap ratio herein.

2.3.3 Subsequent to the cutoff date of September 30, 2024, the sponsor of Trax i.e. Trax Global
Singapore has confirmed to inject an amount of PKR 187,000,000 in the company as advance
against equity. Both S5LG and Trax have agreed that this amount will be considered for the
swap computation as Trax will issue 18.7 million shares to Trax Global - Singapore (Issuance
1), which shall also stand cancelled under the SoA, against which corresponding shares of Trax
shall be issued in favour of SLG. The 18.7 million shares could be issued before filing the SoA
or covered under the SoA which shares are being assumed to be issued for purposes of
determining the swap ratio herein.

However, in case the amount is not injected before the filing of the Scheme of Arrangement
at the Honourable Islamabad High Court the swap ratio computed herein will require
modification.

2.3.4 The issuance of shares mentioned in 2.3.1, 2.3,2 and 2.3.3 above shall be assumed to be
completed on or before the sanction date of the SoA by the Honourable Islamabad High Court.

2.3.5 Trax's authorized capital has been increased from PKR 125,000,000 to PKR 500,000,000, as
per Form 7—Notice of Alteration in share capital, filed on December 12, 2024, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). However, this shall be further
increased for the issuance of shares under clause 2.3.3, above.

2.3.6 The authorized capital of SLG shall be duly increased to take effect of the above clause 2.3.1
as well as issuance of new shares to the shareholders of Trax by SLG. The effect of the same
has also been considered in the share swap computation under the post loan/advance
conversion scenario referred to in paragraph 5.2 below.

2.3.7 The SoA is envisaged to be effective from the start of business at 00:00 hours on October 1,
2024 (effective date) or such other date as may be stated by the Honourable Islamabad High

Court, G
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Annexure |
A. Shareholding Structure as at September 30, 2024
Secure Logistics Group Limited

Name of Shareholder Number of shares Holding %age
Sponsor & Associates
Mr. Pervaiz Afzal Khan 50,258,216 18.37%
Mr, Gulraiz Afzal Khan 21,303,922 7.79%
Mr. Javed Afzal Khan 1 0.00%

_Mrs. Afshan Nasir 8,456,573 3.09%

- Ms. Mahnoor Afzal Khan 33,750,582 12.33%

| Mr. Saad Afzal Khan 16,562,818 6.05%
Other Shareholders
Karandaaz Pakistan 34,068,078 12.45%
KBP Limited 46,393,239 16.95%
IPO Shares 50,000,000 18.27%
Secondary Market Investors 12,845,752 4.69%

273,639,181 100.00%
2. Trax Online (Private) Limited
Name of Shareholder Number of shares Holding %age
Trax Global Pte. Limited 10,499,999 99.99%
Muhammad Hassan Khan 1 0.01%
10,500,000 100.00%
St
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7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

i

circumstances, business model, or financial position. As such, the relevance and applicability
of these comparables should be considered with caution, and any conclusions drawn should
not be relied upon as a definitive representation of the Clients' specific situation.

Our role is limited to providing an objective and independent valuation and swap ratio
analysis, with no involvement in any negotiations or advocacy on behalf of SLG or Trax. This
limitation reinforces our neutrality and independence in the advisory process. Also, the
potential commercial benefits and strategic value of the transaction, along with any
associated legal risks or contingencies, were neither analysed nor evaluated, as these were
not part of our scope of wark.

Other factors not discussed or referred to in this letter should also be considered in evaluating
the merits of the proposed transaction including its execution methodology, commercial
aspects, market penetration, tax and related accounting implications.

Distribution of this letter is restricted to those parties that have agreed on the procedures to
be performed with us and other intended users identified in the terms of the engagement
letter,

In case of any action, claim, loss or damage arising out of this engagement, you agree that
our liability will be for our proportionate share of the total liability based on degree of fault.
In no event shall our liability whether the claim be in tort, contract, or otherwise, be for an
amount in excess of the professional fees paid by you to us for this engagement to which
these terms and conditions apply.

In no event shall we be liable to you, whether a claim be in tort, contract, or otherwise for
any consequential, indirect, loss of profit or similar damages, or failure to realize expected
savings, relating to our services provided under this engagement letter or contract to which
these terms and conditions apply.

Cancellation of the prior Swap letter

Upon issuance of this letter, the Swap Letter dated January 27, 2025 (Ref: Advisory - 3344/25)
shall be deemed cancelled, and this letter shall supersede and replace the previous Swap
Letter in its entirety.

This letter is being issued without prejudice and subject to the limitations and disclaimers outlined
in our engagement letter reference F-07/Advisory-3174/24, dated November 5, 2024,

We would like to thank you for the courtesy and cooperation extended to us during the course of or
engagement

Yours truly,

= —4

BDO Ebrahim & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Encl: Annexures
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6.1.2 Scenario Il - Post Loan/Advance conversion

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

SLG Trax .
PKR/Share | PKR/Share SWap fatio
Valuation Valuation
. ) L - Case | Case Il
Income Based Approach ~ 36.88 52.51 1.42 1.42
All Multiples Average 22.10 62.97 2.85
Agreed Multiples 24.66 50.01 2.03 2.03
AVERAGE SWAP RATIO 1.73 2.10
# of SLG’s Common Shares to
be Issued based on Average - B 112,505,508 | 136,926,773
Swap Ratio 1

The swap ratio for the transaction, Pre Loan/Advance conversion, has been computed in
the range of 9.75 to 11.87 - i.e. under the pre loan/advance conversion scenario, SLG
can issue shares in the range of 9.75 to 11.87 shares for each share of Trax.

The swap ratio for the transaction, Post Loan/Advance conversion, has been computed in
the range of 1,73 to 2.10 - i.e. under the post loan/advance conversion scenario, SLG can
issue shares in the range of 1.73 to 2.10 shares for each share of Trax

The above is to assist the respective Boards of Trax and SLG in forming a view on the swap
ratio; the decision with respect to the appropriate share swap ratio shall rest with the
respective Board of Directors and shareholders of Trax and SLG.

Limitations and Caveats

Valuation is not a precise science, it is subjective and requires the application of experience
and judgment to given facts to arrive at a conclusion. There is no single answer there are
reasonad and reasonable values. Hence, the actual results and accordingly the valuation are
likely to be different than projected since anticipated events do not occur as expected and
the variation could be material.

The valuation is based on the prospective financial statements. Some hypothetical
assumptions or projections inevitably will not materialize and unanticipated events and
circumstances may occur during the forecast period. These could include major changes in
the economic conditions; significant increases or decreases in current interest rates and/or
terms or availability of financing altogether; and/or major revisions in current state and/or
federal tax or regulatory laws. Therefore, the actual results achieved during the projected
period and investor requirements relative to anticipated annual returns and overall yields
could vary from the projection. Thus, variations could be material and may have an impact
on the value conclusions stated herein

We have not carried out financial, accounting, tax, legal, or commercial due diligence of SLG
and Trax, as this was not part of our scope of work. We recommend that the parties carry out
such due diligence prior to consummation of the transaction.

The comparables used in this analysis are based on available market data and industry
benchmarks. However, these comparables may not fully reflect the Clients’ unique

i
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Approach/Method | Valuation (PKR | Per Share Price (PKR) Swap | Number of
Billion) Ratio | shares of
SLG to be
issued
_ SLG Trax SLG Trax
 Number of shares 300,654,788 | 65,190,000
lRcotte Based | 44.087 | 3.423 36.88 52.51 | 1.42 | 92,818,501
Approach | [
‘Agreed Multiples | 7.415| 3.260 |  24.66 50.01 | 2.03 | 132,192,514
Average 1.73 | 112,505,508

5.2.2 Valuation Case Il - Considering Income Based Approach and All Multiples

Valuation Case Il considers the valuation under the income based approach, considering all
multiples and considering only the multiples as agreed between SLG and Trax. Value of SLG
as at September 30, 2024 under the Income Based Approach has been worked out at PKR
11.087 billion, and PKR 3.423 billion for Trax. Valuation of SLG under all multiples has been
worked out to be PKR 6.643 billion, and PKR 4.105 billion for Trax. Valuation of SLG under all
agreed multiples is PKR 7.415 billion, and PKR 3.260 billion for Trax.

|I Approach/Method | Valuation (PKR | Per Share Price (PKR) Swap | Number of
Billion) Ratio | shares of
SLG to be
‘ N issued
SLG Trax SLG Trax
| Number of shares 300,654,788 | 65,190,000
| Iocome.  Besed | 1087 | 243 36.88 52.51 | 1.42| 92,818,501
| Approach
["All Multiples
. 6.643 | 4.105 22.10 62.97 | 2.85 | 185,769,304
| Agreed Multiples 7.415 | 3.260 24.66 50,01 | 2.03 [ 132,192,514
| Average 2.10 | 136,926,773
6. Recommendation:
6.1 Based on the valuations mentioned above, the respective Board of Directors of Trax and SLG

may consider the following calculations to determine an appropriate swap ratio for the
acquisition transaction.

6.1.1 Scenario | - Pre Loan/Advance conversion

SLG Trax ;
PKR/Share | PKR/Share Siran Raln
Valuation Valuation

Case | Case ||
Income Based Approach 40.52 326.00 8.05 8.05
All Multiples Average 24.28 390.95 ] 16.10
Agreed Multiples 27.10 310.50 11.46 11.46
AVERAGE SWAP RATIO B 9.75 11.87
# of SLG's Common Shares to
be Issued based on Average - - 102,396,224 | 124,623,094
Swap Ratio

~ e
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billion for Trax. Valuation of SLG under all agreed multiples is PKR 7.415 billion, and PKR

3.260 billion for Trax.

Approach/Method | Valuation (PKR | Per Share Price (PKR) Swap | Number of
Billion) Ratio | shares of
SLG to be
i issued
| SLG Trax SLG Trax
Number of shares | 273,639,181 | 10,500,000
Incorme’ Based 11.087 | 3.423 40.52 326.00 | 8.05| 84,478,211
Approach
| Agreed Multiples 7.415 | 3.260 27.10 310.50 | 11.46 | 120,314,237
Average 9.75 | 102,396,224

5.1.2 Valuation Case Il -Income Based Approach and All Multiples

Valuation Case Il considers the valuation under the income based approach, considering all
multiples and considering only the multiples as agreed between SLG and Trax. Value of SLG
as at September 30, 2024 under the Income Based Approach has been worked out at PKR
11.087 billion, and PKR 3.423 billion for Trax. Valuation of S5LG under all multiples has been
worked out to be PKR 6.643 billion, and PKR 4.105 billion for Trax. Valuation of SLG under all
agreed multiples is PKR 7.415 billion, and PKR 3.260 billion for Trax.

Approach/Method Valuation (PKR | Per Share Price (PKR) Swap | Number of
Billion) Ratio | shares of

SLG to be
issued

SLG Trax S5LG Trax

| Number of shares 273,639,181 | 10,500,000 |

Income Based

Approach 11.087 | 3.423 40,52 326.00 | 8.05| 84,478,211

All Multiples

Average 6.643 | 4.105 24.28 390.95 | 16.10 | 169,076,835

Agreed Multiples 7.415 | 3.260 27.10 310.50 | 11.46 | 120,314,237

Average 11.87 | 124,623,094

5.2 Scenario Il - Post Loan/Advance conversion
Number of ordinary shares of Trax after conversion of advance against issue of shares will be
65,190,000 and 300,654,788 for SLG, after conversion of the loan amount to equity.

5.2.1 Valuation Case | - Considering Income Based Approach and Agreed Multiples

Valuation Case | considers the valuation under the income based approach and valuation
under the multiples as agreed between SLG and Trax. Value of SLG as of September 30, 2024
under the Income Based Approach has been worked out at PKR 11.087 billion, and PKR 3.423
billion for Trax. Valuation of SLG under all agreed multiples is PKR 7.415 billion, and PKR

3.260 billion for Trax. 5
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4, Fair Value Assessment and Share Swap

4.1 We have performed the fair value assessment of Trax and SLG based on internationally
accepted valuation approaches. The valuation has been performed on the valuation cut-off
date of September 30, 2024.

4.2 The fair value assessment has been performed under the following approaches:

» Income Based Approach

Market Based Approach

» Due to the nature of business of the parties and to ensure uniformity in the valuation
methodologies, the parties have mutually agreed not to consider the Assets Based
Approach. SLG is asset intensive due to the fleet management whereas Trax is more
technology-driven, with its primary assets being intellectual property, software
infrastructure, and digital platforms; accordingly, the assets based approach would not
fairly reflect the valuation of the companies.

Y

4.3 Income Based Approach - Discounted cash flow valuation

The discounted cash flow valuation has been derived based on the business plan information
as shared by Trax and SLG including financial projections up till the year ending December
31, 2029. Further, we were provided other information and explanations as and when
required. We have not conducted any verification of the financial projections, and related
infarmation provided to us.

4.4 Market valuation

The market valuation has been derived by using multiples derived from thz financial data of
comparable companies for Trax and justified multiples for SLG. Multiples considered are:

i EV/Sales

ii. EV/EBITDA

iii. Price to Earnings (P/E)

iv. Price to Sales (P/S)

v, Price to Book Value (P/BY)

Initially, the managements of SLG and Trax agreed upon EV/EBITDA, P/E and P/BY multiples;
however, subsequently, P/S and EV/Sales multiples have also been considered.

5 Valuation Results and Swap Computation Range

553 Scenario | - Pre Loan/Advance conversion

Number of ordinary shares of Trax before conversion of advance against issue of shares is
10,500,000 and 273,639,181 for SLG.

5.1.1 Valuation Case | - Income Based Approach and Agreed Multiples

Valuation Case | considers the valuation under the income based approach and valuation
under the multiples as agreed between SLG and Trax. Value of SLG as of September 30, 2024
under the Income Based Approach has been worked out at PKR 11.087 billion, and PKR 3.423

>
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3. Shareholding information:

39 Trax Online (Private) Limited (Trax)

3.1.1  Current shareholding structure

The Authorized Share Capital of Trax is PKR 500,000,000 (Pak Rupees Five Hundred Million),
divided into 50,000,000 (Fifty Million) ordinary shares of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each, out
of which 10,500,000 (Ten Million, Five Hundred Thousand) ordinary shares have been issued
as fully subscribed to and paid up.

3.1.2 Shareholding after conversion of Advance against issue of Shares (Issuance I)

After the conversion (refer 2.3.2 & 2.3.3) of advance against issue of shares to equity, the
fully subscribed to and paid up ordinary shares will be 65,190,000 (Sixty Five million, One
Hundred and Ninety Thousand).

3.1.3 Shareholding Structure

» Current shareholding structure is attached to Annexure | of this Letter.
» Shareholding after conversion of the advance against issue of shares (Issuance ) is
attached to Annexure |l of this letter.

3.2 Secure Logistics Group (S5LG)

3.2.1 Current shareholding structure

The authorized share capital of SLG is PKR 2,750,000,000 (Pak Rupees Two Billion, Seven
Hundred Fifty Million), divided into 275,000,000 (Two Hundred Seventy Five Million) ordinary
shares of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees 10) each, out of which 273,639,181 (Two Hundred Seventy
Three Million, Six hundred and Thirty Nine Thousand, One Hundred Eighty One) ordinary
shares have been issued as fully subscribed to and paid up.

3.2.2 Shareholding after conversion of Loan of PKR 344,448,998 to equity (to be factored into the
swap computation)

The authorized share capital of SLG is PKR 2,750,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Two billion, Seven
Hundred Fifty Million), divided into 275,000,000 (Two Hundred Seventy Five Million) ordinary
shares of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees 10) each. For the conversion of Loan amount of PKR
344,448,998 to equity, SLG shall issue (in terms of the SoA) 27,015,608 new shares and hence
needs to increase its authorized share capital. Consequently, after the conversion of the loan
to equity, the fully subscribed to and paid up ordinary shares will be 300,654,788 (Three
Hundred Million, Six Hundred Fifty Four Thousand, Seven Hundred and Eighty Eight) prior to
the issuance of shares in favour of the shareholders of Trax.

3.2.3 Shareholding Structure

» Current shareholding structure is attached to Annexure | of this Letter.
» Shareholding after conversion of the loan is attached to Annexure |l of this letter

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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Annexure ||

B. Shareholding Structure after conversion of Loan/Advance against the issue of shares to
Equity

1. Secure Loéistics Group Limited

Name of Shareholder Number of shares Holding %age
Sponsor & Associates _
Mr. Pervaiz Afzal Khan 50,258,216 16.72%
Mr. Gulraiz Afzal Khan 21,303,922 7.09%
Mr. Javed Afzal Khan 1 0.00%
Mrs. Afshan Nasir 8,456,573 2.81%
Ms. Mahnoor Afzal Khan 33,750,582 11.23%
Mr. Taimur Khan 27,015,608 8.99%

| Mr. Saad Afzal Khan 16,562,818 5.51%

| Other Shareholders
Karandaaz Pakistan 34,068,078 11.33%
KBP Limited 46,393,239 15.43%
IPO Shares 50,000,000 16.63%
Secondary Market Investors 12,845,752 4.27%

| 300,654,788 100.00%

2. Trax Online (Private) Limited

Name of Shareholder Number of shares Holding %age
' Trax Global Pte. Limited 65,189,999 99.99%
Muhammad Hassan Khan 1 0.000002%
65,190,000 100.00%

ydar
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Secure Logistics Group Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed Consolidated financial statements of SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP
LIMITED (the Company), which comprise the Consolidated statement of financial position as at September
30, 2024, and Consolidated statement of profit or loss, the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the Consolidated statement of changes in equity, the Consolidated statement of cash flows for the period then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Consolidated statement of financial position, the Consolidated statement of profit or loss, the Consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the Consolidated statement of changes in equity and the Consolidated
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs as at September 30, 2024 and of the profit, the comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the period then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Awditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to:
a) Note 38.1 to the consolidated financial statements which explains that the current financial
statements cover a nine-month period, whereas the comparative information covers a twelve-month
period. As a result, the comparability of the financial statement may be limited.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
ASSURANCE | TAX | CONSULTING

Hyder Liaguat Nauman
A network. Each mambes
& nat itsall

v trades as RSM. RSM is the trading name used by the member
accounting and consulting firm which practices in its own right
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the director report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an unders tandmg of internal control relevant to the audit in order to deslgn audit procedu.res
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Hvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);

b) the consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the period were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Syed Naveed Abbas.

P Ko Nl U guak . —
RSM AVAIS HYDER QUAT NAUMAN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Place: Islamabad

Date: @ = DEC zua
UDIN: AR2024102396Wwn95P3m




SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
September 30, December 31,
2024 2023
Note (Rupees) (Rupees)
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment 5 4,134969,617 “ 3,566,772,505
Intangible assets 6 51,361,397 30,738,635
Long term security deposits 7 89,243,072 89,153,572
4,275,574,086 3,686,664,713
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade debts 8 334,023,818 425,049,047
Stores and spares 9 834,461,940 600,825,781
Advances, deposits and other receivables 10 38,001,789 12,057,738
Advance income tax 75,659,868 55,352,318
Cash and bank balances 11 820,042 1,033,112
1,282,967,458 1,094,317,995
TOTAL ASSETS 5,558,541,544 4,780,982,708
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
275,000,000 (2023: 250,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- 12
sk 2,750,000,000 2,500,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
273},1639.181 (2023: 166,435,068) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- 12 2.736.391.810 1,664.350.680
t:Rat;:v'aiuatitn:l surplus 4,215,735 4 959,688
Share premium 593,483,477 435,631,420
3,334,091,022 2,104,941,788
Accumulated profits 1,169,512,029 787,811,837
Equity attributable to equity holders of the holding 4,503,603,050 2,892,753,625
company
Non-controlling interest 21,182,577 -
4,524,785,628 2,892,753,625
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Liability apainst assets subject to finance lease 13 2,108,500 3,418,624
Deferred tax 14 56,261,215 99,064,857
Employee benefit obligation 15 18,582,692 16,717,918
76,952,407 119,201,399
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors, accrued and other payables 16 159,500,091 181,254,551
Provision for taxation 217,429,903 123,429,411
Current portion of leasing liability 13 1,699,432 143,797,015
Loan from associates 17 70,435,163 254,773,515
Advances against fixed assets 18 - 25,000,000
Short term loans 19 507,738,920 1,040,773,192
956,803,509 1,769,027,683
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,558,541,544 4,780,982,708
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 20 . =

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 forme an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Revenue - net
Cost of services

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Other expense

Operating profit for the period/year
Finance costs

Expected credit losses

Other income

Profit for the period/year before tax

Taxation
Profit for the period/year after tax

Share of profit attributable to:

Equity holdess of holding company

Non- controlling interest

Earning per share- basic and diluted

September 30, December 31,
2024 2023
MNote (Rupees) (Rupees)
21 1,880,242,839 2,044,844,978
22 (1,059,858,855) (1,208,876,424)
829,383,984 835,968,554
23 (201,111,920) (196,842,554)
24 (23,850,762) (99,752,795)
604,421,302 539,373,205
25 (159,164,338) (211,020,179)
(2,228,731) (871,588)
26 10,084,558 15,004,006
453,112,791 342,485,444
27 (68,004,622 25,531,981
385,108,169 368,017,424
378,925,592 368,017,424
6,182,577 .
385,108,169 368,017,424
28 1.67 221

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 jorm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

September 30, December 31,
2024 2024
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Profit for the period/year 385,108,169 368,017 424
Other comprehensive income/ (loss):
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligation 1,576,340 124,997
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligation of subsidiary 454,307 -
7 2,030,647 124,997
Total comprehensive income for the period 387,138,816 368,142,421
Share of total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 380,862,955 368,142,421
Non-controlling interest 6,275,861 -
387,138,816 368,142,421

The annexed nates from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statenrents.

DIRECTOR
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SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Balance as at January 01, 2023
Revaluation surplus

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Balance as at December 31, 2023

Balance as at January 01, 2024
Shares issued for cash
Shares issued for non-cash

Transfer of revaluanon surplus
to retained earnings

Initail share of non- controlling interest
Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income

Balance as at September 30, 2024

The anmesced notes froms 1 to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statenrents.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

oy

e

; Revaluation Share Accumulated e S Nu-n-. ;
Share capital 4 to the owners of | Controlling | Total Equity
surplus premium profits : 3
holding company interest
| (Pak Rupces) |
1,664,350,680 - 435,631,420 419,669,416 2,519,651,516 - 2,519,651,516
4,959,688
- 368,017 424 368,017,424 368,017,424
- 124,997 124,997 124,997
= - - 368,142,421 368,142,421 - 368,142,421
1,664,350,680 4,959,688 435,631,420 787,811,837 2,887,793,937 - 2,887,793,937
1,664,350,680 4,959,688 435,631,420 787,811,837 2,887,793,937 - 2,887,793,937
831,036,660 - 116,551,833 - 947,588,493 947,588,493
241,004,470 - 41,300,224 - 282,304,694 282,304,694
1,072,041,130 - 157,852,057 - 1,229,893,187 - 1,229,893,187
(743,953) 743,953 -
i % - - 15,000,000 15,000,000
- - 378,925,592 378,925,592 6,182,577 385,108,169
- - - 2,030,647 2,030,647 - 2,030,647
- - - 380,956,239 380,956,239 6,182,577 387,138,816
2,736,391,810 4,215,735 593,483,477 1,169,512,029 4,498,643,363 21,182,577 4,504,825,940
P v
C -UU~ &
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR



SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

September 30, December 31,
2024 2023
Note (Rupees) (Rupees)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Profit for the period/year before tax 453,112,791 342,485,444
Adjustment for non-cash items :
Interest expense 25 159,164,338 211,020,179
Depreciation and amortization 22 &23 204,103,387 203,050,125
Exchange loss on loan 3,571,518 1,909,601
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 20,279,244 07,843,194
Expected Credit loss 2228731 871,588
Gratuity expense 4,724,840 2,816,844
847,184,849 859,996,975

Changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in current assets:

Advances, deposits and other receivables (25,944,051) 77,108,717

Trade debts 88,796,498 (140,863,243)

Stores and spares (233,636,159) (114,912,772)

Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities

Unearned income - 23,512,067

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities (21,754,460) 56,531,463

(192,538,172) (98,623,768)

Cash generated from operations 654,646,677 761,373,207

Income tax paid (7,711,566) (17,846,786)

Finance cost paid (180,635,665) (201,562,311)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 466,299,446 541,964,110
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of fixed assets (781,941,003) (795,984,855)

Disposal of equipment - 223,659,326

Long term security deposits-Addition (89,500) 28,118,533
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (782,030,503) (544,206,996)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of loan from associates (409,870) (8,500,000)

Lease rental paid (98,626,360) (104,312,646)

Issuance of shares 947,588,493 -

Repayment of HBL loan (283,730,815) (48,691,185)
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from financing activities 564,821,448 (161,503,831)
Net mcrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 249,090,391 (163,746,717)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period/year (7 56,0(}9,26_8)_ (592,262,550)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period/yeai 29

(506,918.877) (756,009,268)

L\
NG

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated finandal statements,
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SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

1 THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS
Secure Logistics Group Limited (the Group) previously known as Asia Capital Partners (Private) Limited was
1.1 Secure Logistics Group and its subsidiaries are comprises of following:

Name Holding / Subsidiary Percentage of shareholding
Secure Logistics Group Limited Holding Company L

Fist Securities (Private) Limited Subsidiary Company 100%
Logi Serve (Prvate) Limited Subsidiary Company 100%
Sky Guards (Private) Limited Subsidiary Company 75%

Nature of operations of subsidiaries

Fist Securities (Private) Limited

FIST Security (Prvate) Limited was incorporated on 27th June 2001 in Pakistan under the Companies Ordinance
1984, (repealed with enactment of Companies Act, 2017) and is wholly owned subsidiary of Secure Logistics Group
Limited. The company is engaged in the business of providing security and consultancy services for protection of life
and property, particularly with respect to building and factories. The registered office of the company is situated in
The registered office is situated in Sector I-10/3, Islamabad.

Logi Serve (Private) Limited

Logi Serve (Private) Limited was incorporated on December 28, 2021, under the Companies Act, 2017. The principal
line of business of the Company is to engage in software and application development, data processing and to
provide consultancy and training facilities. The Company obtained the Zone Enterpnse license of Special Technology
Zones Authority ("STZA") on May 12, 2022. The registered office of the Company is 10th Floor, State Life Tower,
Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, [slamabad.

Sky Guards (Private) Limited

The Company has acquired 75% shareholding in Sky Guards (Private) Limited dusing the period. Sky Guards
(Private) Limited was incorporated on May 10, 2001 in Pakistan as a private limited company under the Companies
Ordinance 1984, (repealed with enactment of Companies Act, 2017). The company is principally engaged to
carry out the business of installation of security system, selling and imports of security equipment, providing security
services in security contracts, The registered office of the company is Office No, 08, Ginza Center, Blue Area
Islamabad Capital Territory.

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
* International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as nonfied under the Companies Act, 2017; and
* Provisions of and directives 1ssued under the Compantes Act, 2017.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Srandards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.”

2.2 Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain
itemns as disclosed in the relevant accounting policies below.

2.3  Basis for consolidation
Subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. Generally, there is presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control,
The Group re-assess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more elements of control.
Subsidiary is consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidared
until the date when such control ceases. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off
during the year are included in profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.
The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Holding Company, using consistent accounting policies. The accounting policies of the Subsidiary Company have
been changed to conform with accounting policies of the Holding Company, where required. Q




SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2.3 Basis for consolidation (Continue..)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses ansing from
such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling
interest. The excess of cost of acquisition is recorded as goodwill, however, if the cost of acquisition is less than fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Subsidiary Company are consolidated on a line by line basis and
carrying  value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the Subsidiary
Company's shareholders' equity in the consolidated financial statements.

All material intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised pgains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends within the Group are eliminated in full.

Non-controlling interest (NCI) is that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of subsidiary
attributable interest which are not owned by the Group. The Group measures NCI on proportionate basis of
the net assets of subsidiary company.

When the ownership of a subsidiary is less than hundred percent, a NCI exists. The NCI is allocated its share of the
total comprehensive income for the year, even if that results in a deficit balance.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid / received and the
relevant share acquired / disposed off of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and labilities of
the subsidiary, carrying amount of any NCI, cumulative translation differences recognised in other comprehensive
income, and recognises fair value of consideration received, any investment retained, surplus or deficit in profit
and loss, and reclassifies the Holding Company share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income to profit and loss account or retained earnings, as appropriate.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Holding Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Rupee, unless otherwise stated.

2.5 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. In addition, it requires management to
exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a high degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are documented in the following accounting policies and notes, and relate pnmarily to:

- Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and Equipment

- Revenue from contracts with customers

- Useful lives, residual values and amortization method of intangible assets

- Provision for impairment of store and spares

- Impairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventones

- Provision for expected credit losses

- Obligation of defined benefit obligation

- Estimation of provisions

- Estimation of contingent liabilities

- Current income tax expense, provision for current tax and recognition of deferred tax asset (for carried forward tax

losses) Q



SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
3  STATUS OF STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
3.1 Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations becoming effective in future periods
a) Standards and amendments to approved accounting
There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are mandatory for

the Group's annual accounting period which began on January 01, 2023. However, these do not have any significant
impact on the Group's financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to approved accounting
There is a standard and certain other amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be mandatory
for the Group's annual accounting perods beginning on or after January 01, 2023. However, these are considered
either not to be relevant or to have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements and

operations and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4.1 Property and equipment
Items of property, equipment, other than capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss (if any).
Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment loss (if any).
The costs of property and equipment include:
- its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and

- any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

- Borrowing costs, if any.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets (capital work in progress) over their estimated useful lives,
using the reducing balance method at rates specified in relevant notes to the consolidated financial statements.

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising on derecognition of
an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amouats of the asset and is recognised in as other income in the statement of profit or loss.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed on a regular basis. The effect of any changes in
estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
ying ying
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

4.2 Intangibles assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. After initial recognition, these are measured at
cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Costs associated with routine maintenance of
intangible assets are recognized as an expense when incurred. However, costs that are directly attriburable to
identifiable intangible assets and which enhance or extend the performance of intangible assets beyond the original
specification and useful life is recognized as capital improvement and added to the orginal cost of the software.
Amortization is charged using the reducing balance method as per rates mentioned in note 7.1. Amortization on
additions is charged from the month in which an intangible asset is available for use till the date of disposal

The useful lives, residual values and amortization method are reviewed on a regular basis. The effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

4.3 Borrowing costs
Borrowing Costs are recognized as an expense in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of

assets. Qﬁ{d\




SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

4.4 Store and spares

Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, less provision for impairment,
if any. Items in transit are valued at cost compunsing invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

4.5 Trade and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are stated initally at invoice amounts and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less an allowance for expected credit losses, if any. Allowance for expected
credit losses is based on lifetime ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade
debts and other receivables. Bad debits, if any, are written off when considered irrecoverable.

4.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of statement of
cash flow, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, with banks and short term bank finances. The fair value of
cash and cash equivalents approximate their carrying amount.

4.7 Government grant
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached
conditions will be complied with. As the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

4.8 Staff retirement benefits

The Group operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who have artained retirement age,
died or resigned during service period and have served for the minimum qualification period. Provision is based on
the actuanal valuation of the scheme carried out as at December 31, 2022 using the Projected Unit Credit Method in
accordance with IAS-19 “Employee Benefits” and resulting vested portion of past service cost has been charged to
income in the current year. The remeasurement gains / losses as per actuarial valuation done at financial year end are
recognized immediately in other comprehensive income and all other expenses are recognized in accordance with [AS
19 “Employee Benefits” in the statement of profit or loss.

4.9 Lease

The Group, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its right to use the underlying assets and lease
liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Group mainly leases
properties for its operations. The Group recognizes a rght-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated using the straight line method over the shorter of the lease term and the asset's useful life. The estumated
useful lives of assets are determined on the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
perodically reduced by impairment losses, if any.

The Group has lease agreements for head office building which were previously classified by the Group based on its
assessment of whether the lease transferred substantally all of the rsks and rewards of ownership. Under [FRS 16,
the Group recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all the leases 1.e. these leases are on statement of

financial position.




SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

4.9 Lease (Continue..)

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and
conditions, The lease liability 1s subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease
payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination
option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of nght-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

- Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

- Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

- Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

- The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease rerm reflects the lessee exercising that option.
4.10 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. If the lease transfers ownership of the underying asset to the lessee by the end of
the lease term or if the cost of the right of use asser reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the lessee
shall depreciate the night of use asset from the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying
asset. otherwise, the lessee shall depreciate the right of use asset from the commencement date to earlier of end of the
useful life of the nght of use asset or the end of the lease term.

4.11 Non-Controlling interest
Non-controlling interest (NCI) represents the equity in a subsidiary not attriburable, directly or indirectly, to the
parent company. It is measured at the proportionate fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary.
Non-controlling interest is initially measured at the proportionate share of the fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable net assets at the acquisition date. Subsequent to acquisition, NCI is adjusted for the non-controlling
interests’ share of changes in the subsidiary's equity.

4.12 Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 60 days of recognition. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.
They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

413 Taxation
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the rax payable on the current period's taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting peniod. Management perodically evaluates positions raken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the rax authonties. Q{d‘\




SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

413 Taxation (Continue..)

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet approach providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. In
this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income that is subject to final tax regime is also
considered in accordance with the treatment prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,
based on laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary
differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary differences can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
Significant judgment is required in determining the income tax expenses and corresponding provision for tax. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate rax determination is uncertain as these matters are being
contested at various legal forums. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

4.14 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.

415 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entty.

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability 1s
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

Classi i s

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI), fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and in case of an equity instrument it is
classified as FVOCI or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the
first reporting period following the change in the business model.

(a) Amortized cost
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets till maturty and to collect contractual cash
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in
statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortfized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, trade debts and long term

loan. Q{(‘(\




SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

(b) Debt Instrument - FVOCI
A debt
- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to statement of
profit or loss. However, the Group has no such instrument at the reporting date.

(c) Equity Instrument - FVOCI

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in statement of profit or
loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of patt of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses
are recognized in OCI and these investments are never reclassified to profit or loss. However, the Group has no such
instrument at the reporting date.

(d) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
All financial assets not classified as measured at amornzed cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to

be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

(1A 1] 4 A55CIE — 1) SLIICSS 111 OW ASHEH 51T i
For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recogmtion.
‘Interest’ 1s defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending nsks and costs (e.g. liquidity nisk
and admunistrative costs), as well as a profit margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including varable-rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that imit the Group's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).
Financial liabilities

Financial hiabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVIPL. A financial liability is classified as at
EVTPL if it 1s classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized
in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabiliies are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, while the interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in statement of profit or loss.

The Group's financial liabilities compnse Creditors, short term borrowings, accrued markup, Accrued expenses &

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease.
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D itio

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

The Group might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of financial
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these
cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.
- Financial Liabilities
The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of
the modified Lability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the
carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognized in statement of profit or loss.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settde on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
4.16 Impairment
Fi ial
The Group recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:
- financial assets measured at amortized cost;

- debt investments measured at FVOCI; and
- contract assets.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifeime ECLs, except for the following, which are
measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities, bank balances and other receivables for which credit risk (Le. the nsk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial mstrument) has not inereased significantly since initial
recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after

the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

When determining whether the credit nsk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit nisk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a
reasonable period of time. Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifenme ECLs. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs 1s the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the

assefs. Q
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4.17

4.18

4.19

Financial assets (Continue..)

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of
recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group individually makes an assessment with
respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The
Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are wrirten off
could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group's procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

Non - financial assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater
of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in
respect of cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis.
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimares used ro
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amount
after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Foreign currency transactions

Pak Rupee is the functional currency of the Group. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Pak Rupees at
the exchange rate approximating those prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currency are reported in Pak. Rupees at the exchange rate approximating those prevalent at the reporting
date. Non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transaction. Non monetary items measured at fair value in foreign
currencies, are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividends and appropriations to the reserves are recognized in the period in which these are approved. However if

these are approved after the reporting period but before the financial statements are authorized for issue they are

disclosed in the notes to these financial statements.
Revenue recognition

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue ansing from contracts
with customers. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5 - step approach to revenue recognition.

Step 1 Identify the contract with a customer

Step 2 [dentify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3 Determine the transaction price

Step 4 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5 Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation
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4.20 Related party transactions
Transactions with related parties are carried out on commercial terms and condition unless specifically mentioned in

relevant note.
4.21 Contingem liabilities

Contingent liablity is disclosed when:
- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the

occurrence ot non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group; or

- there is a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measure with sufficient reliability. Q
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5 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

30 Septemb 31 Decemb
Note 2024 2023
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Owned 5.1 4,127,697,111 2,123,333,105
Right of use 5.1 7,272,506 1,443,439,400
Total 4,134,969,617 56,772,505
-24
Accumulated Depereciations
Description Balance asat |  Addition / Disposal / 5':""";:’; Dcp“‘n‘:i:;m Batanccasat | Addition/ | Disposal/ Balance as at WDV
January 1, 2024 Transfer Transfer W;EM o January 1, 2024 Transfer Transfer September 30, 2024 =
“Amount in Rupees A in Rupees —
Owned Assests
[Office Equy 10,531,010 54,642,197 65,173,207 15% 7,609317 3,567,676 11,176,993 53,006,214
Secunty equipment 233,403,310 68,260,949 301,664,259 108 27,940,185 22453584 50,393,769 251 270,490
Computers 13,346,832 26,093,973 39,440,805 3% 11,200,457 3,647,726 14,938,184 24,502,621
Weapons and hicesnses 66,597,572 154,238,804 220,836,466 10% 34,138,957 9,500,353 43,639,310 177,197,156
Furniture & Fixture 12,311,597 40,133,464 52,445,061 10% 6,685,499 2,072,145 8,757,644 43,687,417
Vehicles 74,466,478 43,593,541 . 118,060,019 20% 61,840,707 8,006,710 : 69,847,417 48,212,602
Owned truck 621,680244 | 1,127387,139 (60,245,068)]  1,688,831,315 3.5% 68,135.919 26,549,489 (9,965824) 84,719,584 [ 1,604,111,731
Trailers 946,950,956 530,390,231 3 1,477,341,187 28% 97,854,625 22 862926 - 120,717,551 | 1,356,623,636
Fuel Tanks 04,451,893 = 04,451,803 10% 18,317,997 5,710,042 24,028,039 70,423,854
Trackers 197,046,731 691,450 197,738,181 10% 105,036,181 6,920,659 111,956,840 85,781,341
Bop trackers 23,368,389 E 23,368,389 20% 19,017,553 652,625 19,670,178 3,608,211
Wireless immobilizers 1312500 = 1,312,500 33% 1,292523 4944 1,297,467 15,033
Anti thefi devices 432335 23,779571 24,211,906 33% 401,067 1,430,556 1,851,623 22 360,283
Lbs device 20,678 29,678 33% 29,004 167 29,171 507
Fire extinguishers 1288259 1,288,259 33%, 1,181,988 26,302 1,208,200 79,969
Motor cycles 512,500 5 512,500 10% 433,475 5927 439,402 73,098
Distnbubon vehicles 124,655,817 20,776,640 215,432,457 35% 15,447,965 4277969 19,725,934 195,706,523
Tyres 356,882,286 75,220,687 432,102,973 407 105,786,563 56,102,740 251,889,303 180,213,670
Leaschold improvments 14,445,925 14,445,925 16.7% 2,902,378 1,800,793 4,703,171 9,742,754
Subtotal 2,793,723312  2,235,208,735 (60,245,068)  4,968,686,979 675,342,359 175,613,334 (9.965,824) $40,980,868  4,127,697,111
Right of use
Leased tnicks 1,065,077,882 61,540,321 | (1,118,184,203)] 8,434,000 3.5% 152,789,647 13,868,445 [ (165,496,598 1,161,494 7,272,506
Leased trailers 571,899,558 = (571,899,558) - 28% 83,926,311 5,693,021 (89.619.332) 0 0)
[Mutoe vehicles 43,427,501 (43,427,501) 207, 249,583 4317792 (4,567,375 0 0
CIT vehicles - - 10%% - - - -
Subtotal 1,680,404,941 651,540,321 {1,733,511,262) 8,434,000 236,965,541 23,879,258 259,683,30/ 1,161,494 7,
Total 4474,128.253  2,296,749,056  (1,793,756,330)  4,977,120,979 912,307,900 199492592  (269,649,129) 842,151,362 4,134,969,617

R




31-Dec-23

Cost Accumulated fkpewciaﬁum
Description Balance asat |  Addition / Disposal / &:‘::‘b:: ;:' Dt:::i:;” Balanceasat | Addition/ | Disposal / Balance as at WDV
January 1, 2023 Transfer Transfer 223 January 1, 2023 Transfer Transfer December 31, 2023
A in inpeﬂ e — (11 11| [ § T (1T
Owned Assests
Office Equipments 10,531,010 = 10,531,010 15% 7,093,124 515,593 7,609,317 2.021,603
Security equipment 22178846 211,224,464 233,403,310 10% 14,239,942 13,700,243 . 27.040,185 | 205,463,125
Computers 13,346,832 i 13,346 832 33% 10,277,616 1,012,841 = 11,290,457 2,056,375
Weapons and licesnses 35,663,005 24,510,365 60,173,460 10% 24,453,071 3,539,705 - 27,99 676 32,179,784
Furmiture & Fixture 12,311,597 : - 12,311,597 10% 6,060,377 625,122 . 6,685,409 5,626,008
Vehicles 176,834,146 4,573,231 (146,940,905) T4.466,4T8 20% 90,400,564 12928624 | (46,719.463) 36,600,725 17,856,753
Owned truck 743,931,058 80,000,000 (202,241,814) 621,689 244 1.5% 72,845,273 23,793.972 (28,503,327), 68,135,919 553,553,325
Trailers 904,183 862 45,827,020 (93,060 ,826) 046,950,056 28% 83,145,561 23,901,941 (9,192,877) 07854625 | 849,096,131
Fuel Tanks 94,451,803 : 94,451,893 10%% 9,858 675 8,459,322 o 18,317,997 76,133 896
Teackers 181,536.231 15,510,500 197,046,731 1P 95,963,101 9,073,080 105,036,181 92,010,550
Bop trackers 23,368,389 : 23,368,389 20% 17,929,844 1,087,709 : 19,017,553 4,350,836
Wireless immobilizers 1312500 1,312,500 3% 1,282,684 9,839 = 1,292,523 19,977
Anti theit devices 432,335 432335 3% 185,606 15,401 401,067 31,268
Lbs device 29,678 29,678 33% 28,672 332 29,004 674
Fire extinguishers 1,288,259 1,288,259 33% 1,129,646 52,342 1,181,088 106,271
Motor cycles 512,500 512,500 10% 424,604 8,781 433475 79,025
[hstmbution vehicles 124,655,817 - 124,655 817 15% 11,487,058 3,960,907 - 15,447,965 109,207 852
Tyres 249,358,346 107,323,940 356,882,286 0% 145,357,838 51,067,725 |- 639,000 105,786,563 161,095,723
Leaschold improvments 14,445,925 : 14,445,925 16.7% 507,916 2,394,462 : 202,378 11,543,547
Subtotal 2,700,372,319 520,170,426  (442,243,545)  2,787,299,200 592,872,822 156,147,940  (85,054,667) 663,966,095  2,123,333,105
E&tl of use
Leased trucks B27,165.442 247,878,289 (0.965849)  1,065,077,882 4% 127,388,816 27,058,589 (1,657,758) 152,789,647 | 912,288,235
Leased trailers 167,754 068 104,145,490 : 571,899,558 3y 72,016,957 11,009,354 5 83,926,311 487,973 247
Motor vehicles - 13,427,501 43,427,501 20% ; 249,583 2 249,583 43,177,918
CIT vehicles . . 10%% . . - .
Subtotal 1,204,919,510 395,451,280 (9,965,849)  1,680,404,941 199,405,773 39,217,526 (1,657,758) 236,965,541 1,443,439,400
Total 3,995,291,829 924,621,706 (452,209,394) 4,467,704, 141 792,278,595 105,365,465 (86,712,423) 900,931,636 3,566,772,505

R



5.2 Denils of assets disposed off during the Period is as follows:

Accumulated . Gain / (Loss) on Relationship
Cost i Carryin, -1 i
Asset i depacciagion. | CARYINg smount | Geles price disposal lars of the purch Mode of disposal with the
purchaser
........... RUPELS..coivmrienmnns
Ovwmed Trucks 2265849 1,83 308 8,131,481 5,000,000 (3,131 .481) Uguted Cras Aucton None
Owmed Trocks 10,190,836 1,320,801 BAGD 4G 5,000,000 (3,869.946) Malik Enterprises Auchon Mone
Ohwned Trucks 0965849 1,820 892 #,135957 5,000,000 (3,135957) Muhammad Mustafa Aucton Naone
Owmed Trucks 9965349 1,829,892 B,135957 5,000,000 (3135957 Noor Khan Aucnon None
Owined Trocks 0,965 849 1,829 892 B.135957 5,000,000 (3,135.957) Umted Gas Auction None
Chwned Trucks 10,190,836 1,320 801 R/,860.946 5,000,000 (3,869 946) Mahk Enterprises Aucbon None
60,245,068 9,965,424 50,279,244 30,000,000 (20,279,244)
5.3 Allocation of depreciaton is as below:
September 30,  December 31,
2024 2023
(Rupees) {Rupees)
Cost of services IB5476,518 181,639 358
Admimstrative expenses 14,016,073 13,726,107
199,492,592 195,365,463
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6 INTANGIBLES

Cost

Balance as at January 01, 2024
Additions during the period

Balance as at September 30, 2024
Accumulated Amortization

Balance as at January 01, 2024
Charge for the period

Balance as at September 30, 2024

WDYV as at September 30, 2024

Cost
Balance as at January 01, 2023

Balance as at December 31, 2023
Accumulated Amortization

Balance as at January 01, 2023
Charge for the year

Balance as at December 31, 2023

WDV as at December 31, 2023

6.1 Amortization rate

Computer | Navigation . Accounti
ng
Software Software clearlance Software Total
and License
P TR . vesesenssssearosssssnsnses INIPEEScsersasusseonsssssesossasnsnnnmrrrerony
6,600,000 52,150,000 3,803,759 4,800,000 67,353,759
- 28,037,286 28,037,286
6,600,000 52,150,000 31,841,045 4,800,000 95,391,045
4,940,669 23,531,365 3,803,759 4,339,331 36,615,124
248,900 4,292.795 2,803,729 69,100 7,414,524
5,189,569 27,824,160 6,607,488 4,408,431 44,029,648
1,410,431 24,325,840 25,233,557 391,569 51,361,397
6,600,000 52,150,000 3,803,759 4,800,000 67,353,759
6,600,000 52,150,000 3,803,759 4,800,000 67,353,759
4,224,165
4,525,837 16,376,705 3,803,759 28,930,466
414,832 7,154,660 = 115,166 7,684,658
4,940,669 23,531,365 3,803,759 4,339,331 36,615,124
1,659,331 28,618,635 - 460,669 30,738,635
10% 5% 20% 20%

Vi
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9.1

10

1

September 30,
2024 December 31, 2023
Note (Rupees) (Rupees)
LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS
Security deposit with Landlord 31,162,905 31,073,405
Security deposit with clients 58,080,167 58,080,167
89,243,072 89,153,572
TRADE DEBTS
Trade debts- considered goods 340.979.962 429,776,460
340,979,962 429,776,460
Expected credit losses (6,956,144) (4,727,413)
334,023,818 425,049,047
STORE AND SPARES
Tyres 163,493,565 73,135,576
Miscellaneous maintenance items 560,629,987 417,351,817
Trackers 12,433,886 12,433,886
Diesel 97,904,502 97,904,502
834,461,940 600,825,781
Trackers
Cost 12,433,886 12,433,886
12,433,886 12,433,886
ADVANCES DEPOSIT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances
Business advances for way expenses 8,457,026 8,282,026
Advances to Employees 714,455 -
9,171,481 8,282,026
Deposits
Askari Bank Limited - finance lease 4,208,500 2,108,500
Security deposit to clients 13,562,143 450,000
Earnest money 1,673,754 1,217,212
19,444,397 3,175,712
Other receivables
Sales tax receivables 9,385,911 -
(i 38,001,789 12,057,738
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 425,543 442591
Cash at bank in local currency
- Saving account 24,516 E
- Current account 369,984 590,521
820,043 1,033,112
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September 30,
2024 December 31, 2023
Note (Rupees) (Rupees)

12 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
275,000,000 (2023: 250,000,000) Ordinary 2,750,000,000 2,500,000,000
shares of Rs. 10/- each
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
249,538,734 (2023: 166,435,068) Ordinary 2,495,387,340 1,664,350,680
shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash
24,100,447 (2023: -) Ordinary shares issue
other than cash 241,004,470 e

12.1 The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) on April 22, 2024. This listing involved
the issuance of a total of 55,704,113 ordinary shares as part of a pre-IPO at a price of PKR 10.50 per share,
amounting to PKR 585 million. Additionally, the Company issued 50,000,000 ordinary shares through an
IPO at a floor price of PKR 12.00 per share, raising PKR 600 million. Consequently, the Company’s share
capital increased by PKR 1,057 million and the share premium increased by PKR 127 million.

12.2 On 1 January 2024 the group acquired 75% shareholding in sky Guards (Private) Limited. In connection
with the acquisition of Sky Guards (Private) Limited on 1 January 2024, the Company has provisionally

recognized the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The fair values of these assets and
liabilities are provisional and subject to change as additional information about the facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date becomes available. The Company expects to finalize the fair values of
the identifiable assets and liabilities by December 31, 2024

Provisional Fair Values of Identifiable Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed

Asset/ Liability Provisional Fair Value ( Rs.)
Operating fixed assets 1,288,950
License 32,985,042
Trade receivables 745,000
Advances, deposits and prepayments 18,974,124
Cash and Bank 6,980,229
Total assets 60,973,345

Provisional Fair Values of Identifiable Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed (Cont ...)

Trade and other payables 898,345

Other payables 75,000

Total liabilities 973,345

Net Identifiable Assets Acquired 60,000,000
Consideration Type Amount (Rs.)

Fair Value of Shares Issued 45,000,000

Total consideration 45,000,000

o W
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September 30,
2024 December 31, 2023
Note (Rupees) (Rupees)
13 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

As at 1 January 147,215,639 165,260,391
Additions - 64,471,542
Interest expense relating to lease liabilities 5,656,727 21,796,351
Payments (149,064,434) (104,312,646)
As at September 30, 2024 3,807,932 147,215,639
Current 1,699,432 143,797,015
Non-current 2,108,500 3,418,624

3,807,932 147,215,639
_

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

Up to one year 1,955,296 154,750,036
After one year 2,108,500 3,540,875
Total lease liabilities 4,063,796 158,290,911
Future finance charges 255,864 11,075,272

3,807,932 147,215,639

13.1 Cash outflow for leases

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 149,064,434 in 2024 (Rs. 104,312,646 in 2023).

The Group has obtained vehicle on finance leases form different banks at the rate of 3 month
KIBOR+1.5 to 1 year KIBOR+2% on quarterly instalment payment. The Group has provided following
securities to bank against theses finance lease facility;

- Vehicles to be registered in name of firm and lien to be marked over the registration book in name of
bank

- Personal guarantee of all directors.

- Creation of charge of on receivables of the Group from Cherat Cement Company to be registered with
- Promissory notes.

- Hypothecation of leased Assets.

14 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax liability-opening 99,064,857 196,930,250

Charged to profit & loss (41,974,222 (97,916,450)

Charged to other comprehensive income (829,419) 51,057
56,261,215 99,064,857

15 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Employees gratuity 18,582,692 16,717,918

Reconciliation of net liability is as follows:

Present value of defined obligations 18,582,692 16,717,918
18,582,692 16,717,918

Movement in the net liability is as follows:

Opening balance 16,717,918 14,077,127

Charge during the year - P/L 4,724,840 2,816,844

Other comprehensive income (2,860,066) (176,053)

Closing balance 18,582,692 16,717,918
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September 30,
2024 December 31, 2023
Note (Rupees) (Rupees)
15 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION (Continue..)

Movement in Present value of defined obligation
Present value of defined obligations at beginning of the period/) 16,717,918 14,077,127
Current service cost 2,167,422 1,529,800
[nterest cost 2,557,418 1,287,044
Remeasurement gain (2,860,066) (176,053)
Obligation at end of the period/year 18,582,692 16,717,918
Principle actuarial assumptions
The weighted-average assumptions have been used for valuation of this scheme.

a 14.00% 15.50%

b 13.00% 14.50%

c N/A N/A

d Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuanal advice in accordance with

published statistics and experience in Pakistan. The rates assumed are based on the adjusted
SLIC 2001-2005 mortality tables with one year age set back with retirement age is of 60 years.

Sensitivity Analysis

1 Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)
1% Increase in Discount rate
1% Decrease in Discount rate
1% Increase in Salary Increase rare
1% Decrease in Salary Increase rate

16 CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors
EOBI payable
Audit fee payable
Accrued expenses
Salaries payable
Markup accrued
Withholding tax payable
Insurance
Rent payable
Advances from customers

Others payable

17 LOAN FROM ASSOCIATES

Karandaaz Pakistan 17.1
KBP Limited 17.2
Mr. Pervaiz Afzal Khan - Sponsor 173

13,399,716 16,717,918
12,888,847 15,849,957
14,016,059 17,342,388
14,012,443 17,733,654
12,871,373 16,190918
5,766,620 16,858,038
4928515 6,028,515
905,000 2,585,600
1,693,094 .
28,555,040 51,837,562
24,984,291 46,455,618
59,946 184,468
2,301,941 5,629,815
8,067,163 7,167,231
20,370,897 :
61,867,584 44,507,704
159,500,091 181,254,551
; 187,500,000
28,798,665 25.227,147
41,636,498 42,046,368
70,435,163 254,773,515

N
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FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

17 LOAN FROM ASSOCAITES (Continue..)
17.1 The loan is secured against ranking charge on current and fixed assets, post dated cheques of sponsors.

The mark-up is payable on quarterly basis in arrear at the rate of KIBOR + 0.5%.
17.2 It represents an unsecured interest bearing loan. The Company will cover devaluation up to KIBOR+0.5%.
17.3 This loan is unsecured and interest free. The loan does not bear any fixed repayment schedule.

18 ADVANCES AGAINST FIXED ASSETS
Advance against fixed assets 18.1 - 25,000,000

18.1 This represents advance received against disposal of fixed assets.

19 SHORT TERM LOANS

Habib Bank Limited:
Short term loan from HBL bank - 283,730,815
- 283,730,815
Faysal Bank Limited = 1,028474
Askari Bank Limited 19.1 104,999,214 104,999,215
Habib Bank Limited-RF1 192 100,000,001 100,000,000
Habib Bank Limited-RF2 19.3 302,739,705 372,959,439
Habib Bank Limited-RF3 - 178,055,250
507,738,920 757,042,377
507,738,920 1,040,773,192

19 SHORT TERM LOANS (Continued...)

19.1 Running finance facility of Rs 105 million has obtained ar IMK + 1.25%. The facility is secured against 1st
pari passu charge of Rs 50 M against all present and future current and fixed assets of the Group registered
with SECP, 1st pari passu charge of Rs 150 million over all present and future current assets and
receivables of the Group registered with SECP and personal guarantee of all the directors of the Group
excluding personal guarantee of nominee director.

19.2 The Group has obtained running finance facility of Rs. 120 million at 3MK+1.25%. The facility is secure
against 1st pari passu charge of Rs 67 million over all present and future current and fixed assets of the
Group, HPA in favor of HBL of 19 trucks with first exclusive charge of 125 million registered with SECP,
1st par passu charge of Rs 67 million over receivables of the Group and personal guarantee of Mr. Pervaiz
Afzal Khan and Gulraiz Afzal Khan,

19.3 The running finance facility was obtained by the company at 3 Month KIBOR plus 0.5% and is backed by
Stand by Letter of Credir issued by Credit Suisse and arranged by sponsor shareholder Mr. Pervaiz Akhrar

20 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

20.1 Contingencies 30-Sep-24
(Rupees)
a) The following letters of guarantee issued by banks on behalf of the Group
Faysal Bank in faver of PSO PKR 5,000,000
HBL in favor of Shell Pakistan PKR 4,500,000
Faysal Bank in favor of Fatima Feralizer PKR 2,000,000

e
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20 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continue..)

b)

21

Legal Proceedings

Description

Principal Parties

Name of the Court

Shaheen Freight filed a suit against the Group in the Civil
Court, seeking to recover an amount of Rs. 12,502.435. The
basis of this claim is the Group's failure to pay Sales Tax to the
Sindh Revenue Board. The case is currently fixed for a hearing
before the Islamabad Civil Court and remains pending
adjudication. It is more likely that the outcome of the case will
be decided in favor of the Group.

ICL Logistics filed a civil suit against the Group in the Civil
Court Islamabad, to recover an amount of Rs. 15.7 million
claiming that the Group failed to pay the salaries of drvers
hired from ICL. The case is currently fixed for a hearing before
the Islamabad Civil Court and remains pending adjudication. It
is more likely that the outcome of the case will be decided in
favor of the Group.

The Group filed a recovery suit against M.A Hamza over
unpaid invoices for transportation and logistics services in
2019. A settlement was reached, with Mr. Ahmed Faiz ur
Rehman of M.A Hamza Enterprises issuing Security Cheques
worth PKR 9 million to the Group. However, these cheques
bounced due to insufficient funds. The Group reported this,
leading to legal actions including an FIR and a suit by Mr.
Ahmed Faiz ur Rehman. An application under Section 34 of
the Arbitration Act was filed, seeking arbitration, followed by
the Group's appeal against the decision in the Islamabad High
Court. Currently, the appeal is pending, and it is more likely

Secure Logistics

REVENUE - NET

Logistics division
Tracker division
Distribution division
Security services
Closed protection duty
Cash in transit

Less: Sales tax
Reimbursement of salaries

and Shaheen Clvil Consis.
) [slamabad
Freight
Secure Logistics Civil Court
and ICL Logistics I[slamabad
Secure Logistics Islamabad High
and M.A Hamza Court
Sepeemberd o cemberst, 2023
2024 R =
(Rupees) (Rupecs)
1,522,724,634 1,765,138,259
7.932.684 19,650,092
64,512,002 85,028,783
598,486,787 680,181,051
57,692,367 4.913,593
: 27,692,724
2,251,348,474 2,582,604,502
(8,569,547) (73,867,917)
(353,536,088) (463,891 ,60_71
1,889,242,839 2,044,844,978

Qe
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September 30,
2024 December 31, 2023
Note (Rupees) (Rupees)
22 COST OF SERVICES
Salary expense 19,297,890 -
Depreciation 169,834,042 181,639,358
Fuel charges 580,335,118 715,630,375
Way expenses 155,855,196 168,563,784
Drivers salaries 49,912,600 54,979,297
Repair and maintenance vehicles 24,529,620 8,862,891
Stock consumption 20,204,955 18,202,111
Insurance expense 8,999,452 13,157,112
Deduction by clients 541,091 20,098,591
Backload expense 2,841,973 2,968,547
Track services 2,057,465 2,924,158
Offloading charges - 13,500
Transportation/container charges 1,388,197 1,338,000
Commission expense 10,200 160,000
Misc. expenses 5,155,803 1,817,560
Equipment cost 539,280 1,300,563
Uniforms 3,419,656 1,116,626
Accommodation rent 8,180,016 6,870,576
Ammunition 487,464 888,349
Utilities and other direct expenses 435,496 1,700,422
Social security - 2,521,436
EOBI 024,840 4,123,169
Petrol, oil and lubricants 4,908,501 -
1,059,858,855 1,208,876,424
23 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 23.1 70,255,392 106,281,525
Auditor's remuneration 23.2 905,000 2,500,100
Telephone/Mobile/Internet 2,015,915 =
Miscellaneous charges 11,318,600 6,309,923
Legal and professional 29,937,728 6,315,509
Travelling and conveyance 8,840,598 11,878,303
Petrol oil and lubncants 1,556,373 1,690,978
Advertisement 643,498 248,554
Rent, rates and taxes 20,659,502 22,036,053
Printing and stationery 1,434,563 1,360,735
Postage and courier 211,092 230,109
Utlities 2,022,325 4,316,517
Repair and maintenance 7,002,869 1,834,242
Consultancy charges 2,172,145 1,307,500
Fee and subscription 486,800 1,373,424
Entertainment 7,380,175 7,748,315
Amortization 4,610,795 7,684,660
Depreciation 29,658,550 13,726,107

301,111,020 196,842,550
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September 30,
2024 December 31, 2023
Note (Rupees) (Rupees)
23.1 Salaries and other benefits
Salanies 64,641,802 102,773,119
Gratuity expenses 4,724,840 2,816,844
EOBI 888,750 691,562
- 70,255,392 106,281,525
23.2 Auditor's remuneration -
Separate financial statement 600,000 2,070,350
Consolidated financial statement 100,000 273,400
Out of pocket expenses 100,000 156,350
800,000 2,500,100
24 OTHER EXPENSE Y
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 20,279,244 96,791,470
Loss on sale and lease back - 1,051,724
Exchange loss 3,571,518 1,909,601
23,850,762 99,752,795
25 FINANCE COST
Bank charges 1,021,894 525,753
Markup on finance leases 9,514,031 21,235,260
Markup on HBL loan - 44379814
Markup on running finance 98,823,719 97,719,108
Markup on loan from associates 49,804,694 47,160,244
159,164,338 211,020,179
26 OTHER INCOME
Income from - financial assets
Profit from saving account 166,499
Income from non - financial assets
Sale of scrap 661,210 5,223395
Others 9,256,849 9,780,611

10,084,558 15,004,006

27 TAXATION

Current taxation 94,030,193 72,384,469
Deferred taxation {2(:,025,52)_ §97' ,916,450)
68,004,622 (25,531,981)
Current taxation
- Current year 94,030,193 72,384,469
,U30, 72,384,469

27.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and applicable tax rate has not been presented
because the total income of the Group attracted minimum tax under section 113(c) of the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001.
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28

29

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Earnings per share are represented as follows:

Sept;:);:er % December 31, 2024
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Profit for the period/year after tax 385,108,169 368,017,424
Weighted average number of outstanding shares 230,652,958 166,435,068
Basic and diluted EPS 1.67 221
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of following;
Cash and bank balances 1 820,043 1,033,112
Short term loans 19 507,738,920 57,042,380
(506,918,877 (;56,{)09,268)1

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of associated companies, directors and key management personnel. The
Group in the normal course of business carres out transactions with various related parties. The Group
enters into transactions with related parties on the basis of mutually agreed terms. Significant transactions
and balances with related parties are as follows.

30.1 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Basis of Nature of Nine menths
f
Name of the Party selationabiip i ended September| December 31, 2023
30, 2024
Mr. Pervaiz Afzal Khan Sponsor R‘P“I-‘;m > (409,870) 8,500,000
v 9
KBP Limited e Exchange ‘loss 3,571,518 1,909,602
Loan received
: : Amount payable
Me. Gulrais Afzal Khan | CUSEERecUtive | o nect of loaa 8,000,000
officer 3
obtained
Karandaz Pakistan Sharcholder C“‘“i'g:f“ o 187,500,000
Basis of Nature of
Pl atihe Eaay relationship Balances i -Desdd

e e —————
——

Payable balances
Mt. Pervaiz Afzal Khan Sponsor in respect of 41,636,498 42,046,368
loan obtained

Payable balances
Karandaz Pakistan Sharcholder in respect of - 187,500,000
loan obtained
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30.1 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continue..)

Payable balances
KBP Limited Shareholder in respect of 28,798,665 25,227,147
loan obtained

31 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

Chief
Particulars Executive Directors Executive
Officer
e mmamanee Pak Rupees-------=e--m-
September 30, 2024
Salary 3,510,000 2,970,000 4,968,000
Housing expense 1,462,500 1,237,500 2,070,000
Medical expense 526,500 445,500 745,200
Transport allowance 351,000 297,000 496,800
- 4,950,000 8,280,000

Number of persons 1 2 9
December 31, 2023
Salary 5,808,000 8,618,400 3,925,333
Housing expense 2,420,000 3,591,000 1,746,667
Medical expense 871,200 1,292,760 388,800
Transport allowance 580,800 861,840 259,200

9,680,000 14,364,000 6,320,000
Number of persons 1 2 5

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- credit risk;
- liquidity risk; and
- market risk.
This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk
management policies.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's
activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and

obligations. W
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32.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations. To manage credit risk the Group maintains procedures covering
the application for credit approvals, granting and renewal of counterparty limits and monitoring of
exposures against these limits. As part of these processes the financial viability of all counterparties is
regularly monitored and assessed.

The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating and certain investing activities and the Company's
credit risk exposures are categorized under the following headings:

. Sep"‘z‘:}’;‘“ 30, December 31, 2023
(Rupees) (Rapees)
Exposure to credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
Advances, deposits and other receivables 38,001,789 101,211,310
Trade debts 334,023,818 425,049,047
Bank balances 369,984 590,521
372,395,591 526,850,877

To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade receivables, management performs credit reviews
taking into account the customer’s financial position, past experience and other factors. Where considered
necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties.

The aging of trade receivable at the reporting date is:

Not Past Due 215,434,875 373,033,427
Past Due 1 - 60 Days 20,726,381 52,780,207
Past Due 60 - 120 Days 156,234 3,091,238
Past Due 120 Days 142,753 871,588

236,460,243 429,776,460
Expected credit losses (5,295,961) (4,727,413)

231,164,283 425,049,047

Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to

external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rates:

Counter parties without credit rating 372,025,607 526,260,357

Counter parties with credit rating 369,984 590,521
372,395,591 526,850,877

Bank Balances
The exposure to banks is managed by dealing with variety of major banks and monitoring exposure limits
on continuous basis. The ratings of banks ranges from A to AAA.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation to
be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Group believes that it is

not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. w
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322

323

(a)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with the financial instruments. The management is closely monitoring the Group’s liquidity and
cash flow position through its treasury function and ensures availability of funds by maintaining credit
facilities available from financial instirutions. The liquidity management also involves monitoring of
liquidity ratios and maintaining debt financing plans.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

Carrying Contractual Less than More than
Sepoihes 20, 26t Amount Cash flows 1year 1year
Rupees -
Finance lease liabilities 3,807,932 4,063,796 1,955,296 2,108,500
Loan from associates 70,435,163 70,435,163 70,435,163 -
Creditors, accrued and ot 159,500,091 159,500,091 159,500,091
Short term loans 507,738,920 507,738,920 507,738,920 -
741,482,106 741,737,970 739,629,470 2,108,500
Carrying Contractual Less than More than
wbeedl 20 Amount Cash flows 1year 1year
Rupees
Finance lease liabilities 147,215,639 183,682,969 183,412,969 -
Loan from associates 254,773,515 304,578,207 262,531,839 42,046,368
Creditors, accrued and "
] 3 ~ 1
W 181,254,551 181,254,551 181,254,551
Short term loans 1,040,773,192 1,077,967,269 1,077,967,269 -
1,624,016,896 1,747,482,996 1,705,166,628 42,046,368

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significanty earlier or at
significantly different amounts.
Marker Risk

Market nisk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in
market interest rates or market rate of foreign currency. The Group incurs financial liabilities to manage its
market risk. All such activities are carried out with the approval of the Board. The Group is exposed to
interest rate and currency risks.

Market risk management is further analyzed in two categories:
(a) Interest rate risk management.

(b) Currency rate risk management.

Interest rate risk management

The interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from long
term loan, subordinated loans, lease liabilites and short term borrowings. Interest rates are mostly
dependent upon Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate (“KIBOR?”) as indicated in respective notes. There were
no fixed rate instruments outstanding as at reporting date.
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(a) Interest rate risk management (Continue..)
September 30,

Neie 2024 December 31, 2023

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 24,516 -
Financial liabilities
Finance lease hiabilines 3,807,932 147,215,639

Loan from associates = 187,500,000
Short term loans 507,738,920 1,040,773,193
INet exposure in statement of financial position 511,571,368 1,375,488.831

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
Management runs a sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk, if the interest rates at the reporting date had
been increased/(decreased) by 100 basis points with all other vaniables being constant, the profit/(loss)
before tax would have decreased/(increased) by Rs. 4.178 million (2023: 13.353 million). The analysis is
prepared assuming that amounts of assets and liabiliies outstanding as at the reporting date are outstanding
for the entre year.
The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets
/ liabilities of the Group.

(b) Currency rate risk management
Currency nisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial
transactions or receivables and payables thar exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.
The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
foreign loan payables. Currently, the Group's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to:

KBP Limited - Loan from associates 28,798,665 25,227,147

If the functonal currency, at reporting date, had weakened/strengthened by 1% against the USD with all
other variables held constant, the impact on profit before taxation for the year would have been Rs.
513,828 (2022: Rs.0.233 million) respectively lower/higher, mainly as a result of exchange gains or losses on
translation of foreign exchange denominated financial instruments.

33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial assets at amortized cost

Advances, deposits and other receivables 38,001,789 101,211,310
Trade debts 334,023 818 425,049,047
Cash and bank balance 820,043 1,033,112
372,845,650 527,293,468
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Finance lease liabilities 3,807,932 147,215,639
Loan from associates 70,435,163 254,773,515
Creditors, accrued and other payables 159,500,091 181,254,551
Short term loans 507,738,920 1,040,773,193
T 741,482,106  1,624,016,897
= - —————1

e
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34 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, strong credit
rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its existing and
potential investment projects, to maximize shareholders value and reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividend paid to shareholders and remuneration to key management personnel, require interest free
unsecured loans from directors, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
Net debt is calculated as long and short term borrowings offset by cash and bank balances.

The gearing ratios as at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are as follows:

e ommeinclon L, SO TS
Note 2024 (Rapces)
(Rupees) pe
Finance lease liabilities 3,807,932 147,215,639
Loan from associates 70,435,163 254,773,515
Short term loans 507,738,920 1,040,773,193
581,982,015 1,442,762,346
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents (820,043) (1,033,112)
Net debts 581,161,972 1,441,729,234
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 2,736,391,810 1,664,350,680
Revaluation surplus 4,215,735 4,959,688
Share premium 593,483,477 435,631,420
Accumulated profits 1,168,994,808 787,811,837
Equity 4,503,085,830 2,892,753,625
Total capital and debt 5,084,247,802 4,334,482,860
Gearing ratio 11% 33%

The Group finances its expansion projects through equity, borrowings and management of its working
capital with a view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.
The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain stakeholders' confidence and to

ensure sustainable future development of the business.
The Board of Directors monitors return on equity and ensures that the company has an appropriate capital

mix. Board of Directors monitors the company's performance along with capital and debt costs. There
were no changes to the Group's approach to the capital management during the year.

35 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern and there is no
intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on
adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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35 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued...)

IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ requires the Group to classify fair value measurements and fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements of fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset either
directly that is, derived from prices.

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is unadjusted)
inputs.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting period during
which the changes have occurred.

As of the reporting date, mutual funds of the company are carried at fair value.

The carrying values of all other financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements
approximate their fair values.

September December 31,

36 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 30, 2024 2023
Number of employees 146 135
Average number of employees 146 135

37 DATE OF AUTHORISATION 2 - L’ C ’_31'_‘126.5.

These consolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue on
of Directors of the Group.

38 GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

38.1 CORRESPONDING FIGURES
The current financial statements have been prepared for the nine-month period from 1 January 2024 to 30
September 2024, as they are intended for a special purpose related to the company’s merger. In accordance
with TAS 1, "Presentation of Financial Statements," comparative information for the prior year has been
presented for the full twelve-month period ended 31 December 2023, as the prior year’s financial statements
were prepared on an annual basis.
This presentation does not fully comply with the comparability requirements of IAS 1 for the profit and loss
account and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows
which typically requires comparatives for a comparable period (e.g., nine months for the prior year). The
mismatch between the reporting periods (nine months versus twelve months) may limit direct comparability
of the results.
Users are advised to consider this limitation when analyzing the financial performance and cash flow trends.

by the Board

December 31,
2023
Nature From To (Rupees)
‘ Ni?afﬂ?;zm Current Liabilities
Loan from associates " (face of Statement of 42,046,368
(face of Statement Rinsciil rodibioe)
of financial position) P chm

Cor e
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SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

UNDER SECTIONS 279 TO 283 AND 285(8) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

INVOLVING

SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED
AND ITS MEMBERS

AND

TRAX ONLINE (PRIVATE) LIMITED
AND ITS MEMBERS

FOR

The corporate reorganization / re-arrangement of the entire shareholding of Trax Online

(Private) Limited, comprising vesting of the same in Secure Logistics Group Limited, against

the allotment and issuance of shares of Secure Logistics Group Limited to the shareholders
of Trax Online (Private) Limited, along with all ancillary matters.



SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
UNDER SECTIONS 279 TO 283 AND 285(8) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

BETWEEN

SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED, a public company limited by shares and listed on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited, incorporated and existing under the laws of Pakistan and having its
registered office at 10" Floor, New State Life Tower, Blue Area, Islamabad Capital Territory,
Islamabad (hereinafter referred to as “SLG”, which expression shall mean and include, where the
context so requires or admits, its successors-in-interest and permitted assigns);

AND

TRAX ONLINE (PRIVATE) LIMITED, a private company limited by shares, incorporated and existing
under the laws of Pakistan and having its registered office at Plot # 9, Street # 07, Sector 1-10/3,
Islamabad (hereinafter referred to as “Trax”, which expression shall mean and include, where the
context so requires or admits, its successors-in-interest and permitted assigns);

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE MEMBERS.

RECITALS

WHEREAS by this Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”), it is, inter alia, proposed that:

1.

The issued and paid up share capital of Trax shall be reorganized, such that the Trax
Arrangement Shares, held by the Trax Arrangement Shareholders, shall stand cancelled with
effect from the Effective Date, and Trax shall allot and issue a corresponding number of Trax
Re-organization Shares in favour of SLG, without any reduction in the issued and paid up
share capital of Trax.

In consideration for the Arrangement, SLG shall allot and issue SLG Shares in favour of the
Trax Arrangement Shareholders in accordance with this Scheme.

Each of SLG and Trax shall continue to own and operate its respective undertaking (including
all Assets, Liabilities and Obligations comprising the same), each as independent companies,
without any company being dissolved or wound up.

This Scheme, if approved through a resolution by the requisite majority of the respective
members of SLG and Trax, along with the requisite majority of creditors (as may be
applicable), and sanctioned by the Court by an order passed in this respect, is to be binding
on SLG and Trax along with all the members, creditors, employees, Customers, contracting
parties, governments, tax and regulatory / statutory authorities, bodies and departments of
or with respect to SLG and Trax (as applicable) respectively.



BENEFITS OF THIS SCHEME

Arrangement Between SLG, Trax and their Respective Members

The Arrangement shall allow SLG and Trax to effectuate the commercial arrangement
envisaged by the parties, i.e. the companies and their respective members, through the
provisions of sections 279 to 283 and 285(8) of the Act, without adversely affecting or
impacting the operations of the companies, and in a seamless and tax efficient manner.

Larger Asset Base

The Arrangement would lead to an increase in the asset base and size of SLG (on a
consolidated basis), which will become the holding company of Trax. This would in turn allow
SLG to a combined pool of assets (including a larger fleet for the group companies) and allow
it to structure its group businesses in an organized manner, based on efficient allocation of
resources.

Synergies

In light of the business nature of the respective companies, the Arrangement is expected to
enable the companies to benefit from a range of synergies, including those listed below, thus
potentially enhancing shareholder value and future profits. The companies expect that the
expanded range of services to be offered by the group and other synergies, including
reduction in overlapping expenses and consequently savings will lead to a substantial
enhancement in shareholder value through an enhancement in top and bottom-lines.

(i) Strategic / Business Synergies: SLG is involved in the business of long haul and
medium haul logistics, asset tracking services, fleet management services and security
services; whereas Trax is involved in warehousing and door-to-door delivery / E-
commerce (last mile). Consequently, the Arrangement (as a consequence of which
Trax will become a wholly owned subsidiary of SLG) would enable the implementation
of an end to end solution which can be provided by the companies as a group to their
clients at a national level. The same will effectively enable the fulfilment of SLG’s long-
term objectives to expand its business and operations by adding the complimentary
business lines of last-mile service and warehousing, along with the relevant sub-
segments, which will ultimately benefit its shareholders. In this respect, the
organograms depicting (a) SLG on a stand-alone basis; (b) Trax on a stand-alone basis;
and (c) the companies as a consequence of the Arrangement, are attached hereto as
Annexure A.

(ii) Supply Chain Synergies: The Arrangement will allow the companies to (collectively)
become a prominent 4 PL player in the logistics market, with the potential to become
a domestic market leader, and develop the capacity to expand regionally.

(iii) Technological Synergies: SLG will be in a position to utilize Trax’s established
technology platform, which can be expanded to include fin tech and B2B market app
for third party fleet deployment, thus complementing SLG’s existing business line,
allowing the companies to implement a country-wide exposure in the business of e-
commerce.



(iv) Human Resources Synergies: The companies will be in a position to utilize and
combine their expertise and vast resources to implement a joint business structure, by
taking advantage of, inter alia, their respective experienced teams in the business
lines detailed above, including their operational and commercial teams across the
country. Furthermore, it will become possible to achieve workforce optimization
through improved resource allocation and skill optimization, as well as employee
development involving shared training and development programs to enhance
employee capabilities.

Reduction in Administrative Costs

The Arrangement would enable the companies (as group companies) to reduce and / or share
costs and achieve savings through, inter alia, in-house fleet management, sharing of
resources, and streamlining of expenses in various departments, including human resources,
marketing, logistic operations and infrastructure (e.g. use of office spaces).

Increase in Risk Absorption Capacity

The larger size of SLG (as the holding company) would increase its risk absorption capacity (on
a consolidated basis) thus enhancing the capacity to manage the potential risks arising out of
the adverse and uncertain operating environment. In the long run, this factor would provide
greater stability as well as sustainability in operations for SLG and its group companies.

Cash Flow Stream

The Arrangement will allow SLG (being the holding company of Trax) to develop and have
access to a diversified cash flow stream through the distinct, yet synergetic, business lines of
logistics, asset tracking, warehousing and security services.

Cost Savings and Rationalization

The Arrangement would enable the companies and their respective members to rationalize
and save costs under the applicable laws while effectuating the envisaged arrangement.

Benefits for Shareholders

Overall, the Arrangement is likely, in the context of the benefits set out herein, to enhance
shareholder value as well as future returns for the shareholders of SLG (including the
shareholders of Trax upon their becoming shareholders of SLG upon the effectuation of the
Arrangement). SLG (including through its group companies) will have larger market
capitalization and an improved market position with the potential for better performance,
both in terms of the ability to deploy capital more effectively and manage its resources and
operations more efficiently. The Arrangement will allow for more liquidity of shares with
respect to SLG (being a listed entity), allowing shareholders (especially minority shareholders)
to trade in their shares with more ease. Additionally, a robust company may attract more
investors, further improving shareholder returns and shareholder value.



NOW THEREFORE, this Scheme is presented as follows:

1.1.

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

In this Scheme, including in the recitals and benefits above, unless the subject or context
otherwise requires, the following expressions shall bear the meanings specified against them
below:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2017,

“Annexure A” is the annexure attached hereto which contains the organograms depicting (i)
SLG on a stand-alone basis; (ii) Trax on a stand-along basis; and (iii) the companies as a
consequence of the Arrangement;

“Annexure B” lists the details of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders, as on the date of this
Scheme, along with the corresponding Trax Arrangement Shares to be cancelled, as part of
the Arrangement, pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme;

“Annexure C” is the annexure attached hereto which lists the current members of the Board
of Directors of SLG;

“Annexure D” is the annexure attached hereto which lists the current members of the Board
of Directors of Trax;

“Annexure E” is the annexure attached hereto which details the list of KPIs, along with the
corresponding entitlement of SLG Shares in favour of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders;

“Annexure F” is the annexure attached hereto containing the Swap Letter;
“Arrangement” shall have the same meaning as prescribed thereto in Article 2.1;

“Assets” mean assets, properties and rights of every description and kind (whether present
or future, actual or contingent, tangible or intangible) and includes properties held on trust
and benefit of securities obtained from Customers, benefits, interests, powers, rights,
authorities, privileges, contracts, Government consents, Government subsidies, tax refunds /
credits, tax protections, remissions and exemptions (including holding period of such assets
and liabilities along with all the rights attached and accrued thereto including, but not limited
to, equity-based tax credits for unexpired period), sanctions and authorizations, including all
registrations, licences, Claims, no objection certificates / letters, permits, categories,
exemptions, quotas, entitlements, sanctions, empowerments, dispensations, charters,
immunities, grants, prerogatives, permissions and benefits relating to the business /
company, all trademarks, patents, copyrights, intellectual property rights (whether registered
or not), licences, liberties, secret processes, know-how, good-will, data and confidential
information belonging / pertaining to a company. Without in any way limiting or prejudicing
the generality of the foregoing, it is hereby clarified that the term ‘Assets’ shall include: (i) all
properties, immovable and movable, real, corporeal or incorporeal, in possession or
reversion, present or contingent of whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated belonging
to a company, as well as equity, stocks, debentures, bonds, rights under futures, options,



derivative contracts, commodities etc. (and all rights, titles, interests and easements
associated therewith); (ii) all inventory, stock-in trade, raw materials, ingredients, packaging,
consignments from shipments, consumable stores, plant, machinery, equipment, furniture
and fixtures, work-in-progress, computer hardware and software, software applications and
licences, motor vehicles, office and laboratory equipment and supplies, appliances and
accessories, spare parts and tools; (iii) all Claims, choses-in-action, instruments, decretal
amounts, bank and other accounts, cash balances, goodwill, revaluation surplus, reserve
funds, revenue balances, investments, interest / profit / dividends accrued on investments,
loans, advances, guarantees, deposits, prepayments, receivables, book debts, trade debts
and all other rights and interest in and arising out of such property in the ownership,
possession, power or control of a company, whether legal or beneficial, whether within or
out of Pakistan; (iv) all books of accounts, registers, records, information, date, documents of
title, reports, policies, surveys, research, advertising or other promotional material, and all
other documents of whatever nature relating thereto, in every form; (v) all benefits and
rights under Contracts, including rights under or relating to Contracts; (vi) all the utility
connections, equipment, installations and facilities for telecommunications, electricity, gas,
water, sewerage and other installations, owned by, or leased or licensed to, a company
(including related deposits); (vii) the Contingent Claims, tax credits / carry forward losses /
unabsorbed depreciation / amortization and proceeds realized from the Liquidation of the
Contingent Claims; (viii) unadjusted tax receivables / losses, advance tax payments,
withholding taxes and tax refunds; (ix) sales tax carry forward balance, unadjusted sales tax
input credits and sales tax refunds; (x) any subsidy receivable claims; and (xi) registrations
and licences with / from any and all regulatory authorities and bodies, the Federal Board of
Revenue, Provincial Revenue authorities for sales tax on services, Provincial Boards of
Revenue, including in respect of income tax, sales tax, customs duty, excise duty and
otherwise;

“CDC” means the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited;

“CDS” means the Central Depository System (an electronic book entry system for the
recording and transfer of securities, established under the Central Depositories Act, 1997 and
maintained by the CDC);

“Claim” means claim, counter-claim, demand or cause of action and includes a Contingent
Claim;

“Completion Date” shall have the same meaning as prescribed thereto in Article 3.1;

“Contingent Claims” means any potential Claim that a company may have against any person
prior to the Effective Date which may not be disclosed or reflected as part of its Assets on its
books or records;

“Contracts” means any contracts, agreements, deeds, instruments, insurance policies, letters
or undertakings of every description, creating any obligations enforceable against the parties
thereto, including any finance agreements;

“Court” means the Islamabad High Court, or any other Court / authority for the time being
having jurisdiction under the Act in connection with the arrangements under this Scheme
(including the Arrangement);

“Customer” means any person having entered into a transaction, arrangement or other
dealing with a company;



“Effective Date” shall have the same meaning as prescribed thereto in Article 3.1;
“ESOS Shares” shall have the same meaning as prescribed thereto in Article 8.2(iii)(a);

“existing” means existing, outstanding or in force immediately prior to the Effective Date
(unless stated otherwise);

“KPIs” means the key performance indicators, as detailed in Annexure E;
“KPI Achievement Date” means close of business on March 31, 2026;

“Liabilities and Obligations” includes all borrowings, liabilities, duties, commitments and
obligations of every description (whether present or future, actual or contingent) arising out
of any Contract, law or otherwise whatsoever, and all Securities, and the term “Liabilities”
and “Obligations” are used interchangeably and / or in conjunction with each other;

“Liquidation” means the release, compromise, satisfaction, settlement or reduction to
judgment of any Claim by a competent court of law;

“Record Date” the date to be fixed by the directors of Trax, after the Completion Date, in
accordance with the provisions of this Scheme, to determine the identities and entitlements
of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders;

“Scheme” means this Scheme of Arrangement, in its present form with any modifications
thereof or additions thereto, approved or with any conditions imposed by the Court;

“Security” or “Securities” means interest, right or title in and to any and all mortgages,
encumbrances or charges (whether legal or equitable), debenture, bill of exchange,
promissory note, guarantee, lien, pledge (whether actual or constructive), hypothecation,
assignment by way of security, right of set-off, undertaking or other means of securing
payment or discharge of any Liabilities and Obligations;

“SLG” shall have the meaning as prescribed in the Preamble above;

“SLG Shares” means the ordinary shares of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each in the share
capital of SLG;

“Swap Letter” means the letter dated February 14, 2025, issued by BDO Ebrahim & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, to the respective Board of Directors of SLG and Trax, attached hereto
as Annexure F, pertaining to the Arrangement, and detailing, inter alia, the valuations of SLG
and Trax, along with the basis and calculation of the range of the Swap Ratio;

“Swap Ratio” shall have the same meaning as prescribed thereto in Article 8.2(i)(a);

“Trax” shall have the meaning as prescribed in the Preamble above;

“Trax Arrangement Shareholders” means the persons, being the members of Trax (to the
extent of the Trax Arrangement Shares), as detailed in Annexure B, whose Trax Shares, to the

extent of the Trax Arrangement Shares, shall stand cancelled in accordance with the
provisions of this Scheme, which term shall also mean and include the persons to whom such



1.2.

members have transferred (including by operation of law) all or any part of their Trax
Arrangement Shares, as finally determined and existing on the Record Date;

“Trax Arrangement Shares” means collectively, the 65,190,000 (Sixty Five Million One
Hundred Ninety Thousand) Trax Shares, as detailed in Annexure B, legally and beneficially
owned and held by the Trax Arrangement Shareholders, which shall stand cancelled as part
of the Arrangement, in accordance with the provisions hereof;

“Trax Re-organization Shares” means collectively, the 65,190,000 (Sixty Five Million One
Hundred Ninety Thousand) Trax Shares to be allotted and issued, as part of the Arrangement,
to SLG in the manner prescribed under this Scheme; and

“Trax Shares” means the ordinary shares of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each in the share
capital of Trax.

In this Scheme, unless specified otherwise:

(i) the headings in this Scheme are for convenience only and shall not affect the
construction or interpretation thereof;

(ii) a reference to any legislation or legislative provision includes any statutory
modification of, or re-enactment of, or legislative provision substituted for, and any
subordinate legislation under that legislation or legislative provision;

(iii) a reference to any agreement or document is to that agreement or document and,
where applicable, any of its provisions, as amended, novated, restated or replaced
from time to time;

(iv) a reference to an Article or Annexure is to an article or annexure of or to this
Scheme;

(v) words denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;

(vi) a reference to a person includes a company, firm, trust, authority or government and
vice versa;

(vii) a reference to any person includes that person’s executors, administrators,
successors, legal heirs, and permitted assigns;

(viii)  “including” and “include” shall be deemed to mean “including, without limitation”
and “include, without limitation”; and

(ix) the word “hereof”, “herein”, “hereto” and “hereunder” and words of similar import
when used, with the required linguistic and / or grammatical derivation, in this
Scheme refer to this Scheme as a whole and not to any particular provision thereof.



2.1

2.2.

2.3.

3.1.

4.1.

4.2.

ARTICLE 2
OBIJECTS OF THE SCHEME

The principal object of this Scheme is to cause a reorganization / re-arrangement in the
issued and paid up share capital of Trax, through the cancellation of the Trax Arrangement
Shares held by the Trax Arrangement Shareholders, with effect from the Effective Date,
without any further act or deed (except to the extent stated herein), and simultaneous
allotment and issuance of the Trax Re-organization Shares in favour of SLG in accordance
with the provisions of this Scheme (the “Arrangement”), along with carrying out a capital re-
organization of SLG.

In consideration for the Arrangement, fully paid up SLG Shares shall be allotted and issued in
favour of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders from time to time, in accordance with the
provisions of this Scheme.

It is hereby clarified that although all of the above steps will take place on the same date
(unless otherwise detailed in this Scheme), the same shall be deemed to be effective as of
the Effective Date.

ARTICLE 3
EFFECTIVE DATE

This Scheme shall become operative and bind SLG and Trax as soon as an order is passed by
the Court under Sections 279 / 282 of the Act, sanctioning this Scheme and making the
necessary provisions under Section 282 of the Act (along with other enabling provisions
under the applicable laws) (hereinafter referred to as the “Completion Date”). When this
Scheme becomes operative on the Completion Date, the Arrangement (along with all other
matters (as applicable)), in accordance with this Scheme, will be treated as having effect from
the start of business at 00:00 hours on October 1, 2024, or such other date as may be stated
by the Court (hereinafter referred to as the “Effective Date”). Each company shall file a
certified copy of the order passed by the Court with the Registrar of Companies, Islamabad in
accordance with Section 279 of the Act.

ARTICLE 4
CAPITAL

The authorized share capital of SLG is PKR 2,750,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Two Billion Seven
Hundred Fifty Million), divided into 275,000,000 (Two Hundred Seventy Five Million) ordinary
shares of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each, out of which 273,639,181 (Two Hundred Seventy
Three Million Six Hundred Thirty Nine Thousand One Hundred Eighty One) ordinary shares
have been issued, fully subscribed to and paid up.

The authorized share capital of Trax is PKR 700,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Seven Hundred
Million), divided into 70,000,000 (Seventy Million) ordinary shares of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees
Ten) each, out of which 65,190,000 (Sixty Five Million One Hundred Ninety Thousand)
ordinary shares have been issued, fully subscribed to and paid up.



4.3.

4.4.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

Upon the sanction of this Scheme, and subject to the payment of the requisite fee, the
authorized share capital of SLG shall stand enhanced to PKR 4,250,000,000/- (Pak Rupees
Four Billion Two Hundred Fifty Million), divided into 425,000,000 (Four Hundred Twenty Five
Million) SLG Shares, and accordingly the Memorandum and Articles of Association of SLG
shall stand amended. Approval of the members of SLG to this Scheme shall also include and
constitute an approval by way of special resolution, from the members of SLG to the
alteration of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of SLG for the increase of the
authorized share capital of SLG to PKR 4,250,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Four Billion Two Hundred
Fifty Million), as required in terms of the Act.

It is hereby clarified that consequent upon the Scheme becoming effective, the authorized
share capital of Trax shall remain unchanged.

ARTICLE 5
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The current directors of SLG are listed in Annexure C.
The current directors of Trax are listed in Annexure D.

The respective directors of SLG and Trax are expected to continue as the directors of the
respective companies after the Completion Date, subject to compliance with the applicable
laws and / or their ceasing to be directors in the meantime due to any reason(s),
appointments being made to any vacancies thus created or existing and / or fresh elections
being held prior to the sanction of this Scheme in compliance with applicable laws.

Having said the above, upon the sanction of this Scheme, the composition of the Board of
Directors of SLG shall automatically be increased from 7 (seven) to 9 (nine) directors. The
directors of SLG shall cause such additional vacancies to be filled by the persons nominated by
the Trax Arrangement Shareholders, which persons (or their replacements) shall continue to
be directors of SLG for the remaining term of the Board of Directors of SLG.

All the respective directors of SLG and Trax have interest in the Arrangement, and ancillary
matters under this Scheme, to the extent of their respective directorships and (direct and / or
indirect) shareholdings in the said companies (to the extent applicable). The effect of this
Scheme on the interest of these directors does not differ from the respective interests of the
members of each of SLG and Trax, except to the extent stipulated in this Scheme. In this
respect, it may be noted that:

(i) Mr. Pervaiz Afzal Khan, being a director of SLG, is entitled to SLG Shares as stipulated
in Article 8.1; and

(ii) Mr. Muhammad Hassan Khan and Mr. Asad Abdulla are amongst the shareholders of

Trax Global Pte. Limited, being the principal Trax Arrangement Shareholder, in favour
of which SLG Shares shall be issued in consideration of the Arrangement.
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6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

ARTICLE 6

ARRANGEMENT

Ownership and Cancellation of the Trax Arrangement Shares

The Trax Arrangement Shares are legally and beneficially owned and held by the Trax
Arrangement Shareholders as of the date hereof, as per the details stipulated in Annexure B,
and are free from any Claims or Securities as on the date of this Scheme.

Cancellation of the Trax Arrangement Shares

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Subject to the sanction of this Scheme, and with effect from the Effective Date, the
Trax Arrangement Shares shall stand automatically cancelled without any further act
or deed, or any documents required to be executed, registered or filed in respect of
such cancellation (except to the extent stated herein).

Securities existing over the Trax Arrangement Shares (or any portion thereof), if any,
shall stand automatically extinguished, discharged and vacated on the Completion
Date.

The respective Trax Arrangement Shareholders shall hand over certificates
representing the Trax Arrangement Shares to the management of Trax in accordance
with Article 8.2(i), which shall stand cancelled, provided that the Trax Arrangement
Shares shall automatically stand cancelled notwithstanding the non-provision of such
certificates.

Issuance of the Trax Re-organization Shares

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

In lieu of the cancellation of the Trax Arrangement Shares, and as part of the
Arrangement, Trax shall simultaneously allot the Trax Re-organization Shares,
credited as fully paid up, at par, in favour of SLG (and / or to its nominees).

The Trax Re-organization Shares being allotted and issued, represent the
corresponding number of Trax Shares being cancelled as part of the Arrangement.

The Trax Re-organization Shares, issued by Trax to SLG, shall initially be recorded in
the books of account of SLG at, and considered to have, the same cost at which the
Trax Arrangement Shares (which are being cancelled) are held / recorded by the
respective Trax Arrangement Shareholders prior to the Completion Date.

The issuance of the fully paid up Trax Re-organization Shares in favour of SLG shall be
carried out by Trax within 45 (forty five) days from the allotment thereof.

Notwithstanding the above, the allotment and issuance of the Trax Re-organization
Shares shall be deemed to have been carried out with effect from the Effective Date.

Subject to the sanction of this Scheme, but with effect from the Effective Date, SLG
shall be the legal and beneficial holder / owner of the Trax Re-organization Shares
allotted and issued in its favour in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme. SLG
shall be fully permitted to deal with the same in its own right, and entitled to all the
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6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

7.1.

7.2.

rights and the benefits thereof. Furthermore, all Liabilities and Obligations pertaining
to the Trax Re-organization Shares shall stand vested in, and assumed by, SLG.

(vii) The Trax Re-organization Shares shall be issued free of any and all encumbrances or
Securities.

(viii)  Any Claims existing on or with respect to the Trax Arrangement Shares, or any
portion thereof, shall, upon the sanction of this Scheme, be deemed to be Claims on
or with respect to the Trax Re-organization Shares (or the relevant portion thereof),
which shall stand vested in SLG.

Issued and paid up share capital of Trax

(i) As a consequence of the Arrangement, the issued and paid up share capital of Trax
shall remain PKR 651,900,000/- (Pak Rupees Six Hundred Fifty One Million Nine
Hundred Thousand), divided into 65,190,000 (Sixty Five Million One Hundred Ninety
Thousand) Trax Shares.

(ii) Consequently, there shall be no reduction or increase in the issued and paid up share
capital of Trax.

General

(i) SLG shall be entitled to execute deeds, assignments, confirmations or similar
instruments pertaining to the Trax Re-organization Shares.

(ii) Trax shall continue to own and operate its entire undertaking (including all Assets,
Liabilities and Obligations comprising the same), as an independent company,
without being dissolved or wound up.

Clarification

The provisions contained in Articles 6.1 to 6.5 above are without prejudice to the generality
of any other provisions in this Scheme, but subject to any provisions in this Scheme to the
contrary effect.

ARTICLE 7
THE SCHEME’S EFFECT

The provisions of this Scheme shall be effective and binding by operation of law and shall
become effective in terms of Article 3.

The execution and / or sanction of this Scheme, and the implementation of the Arrangement,
shall not: (i) constitute or be treated as any assignment, transfer, devolution, conveyance,
alienation, parting with possession, or other disposition under any law for the time being in
force; (ii) give rise to any forfeiture; (iii) invalidate or discharge any Contract or Security
(except to the extent stipulated in this Scheme); (iv) give rise to any right of first refusal or
pre-emptive right that any person may have in respect of the Trax Arrangement Shares, or
any investment made by a person in Trax and / or SLG; and / or (v) constitute a contractual
transfer, but instead a transfer by operation of law.
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7.3.

7.4.

8.1.

8.2.

Upon the sanction of this Scheme, and with effect from the Effective Date, the terms of this
Scheme shall be binding on SLG and Trax, and also on all the respective shareholders /
members of SLG and Trax, the Customers of each of SLG and Trax, the creditors of the
companies and on any other person having any right or liability in relation to either of them.

On the date of sanction of this Scheme, and with effect from the Effective Date, this Scheme
will override the constitution / constitutive documents of the respective companies, to the
extent of any inconsistency.

ARTICLE 8
CONSIDERATION FOR THE ARRANGEMENT AND RELATED MATTERS

As part of the arrangements envisaged under this Scheme, including to achieve the
commercial objectives hereunder, the aggregate loan provided by Mr. Pervaiz Afzal Khan
(“PAK”) (being a director) to SLG, in the aggregate amount of PKR 344,448,998/- (Pak Rupees
Three Hundred Forty Four Million Four Hundred Forty Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety
Eight) comprising: (i) the finance facility provided by Habib Bank Limited to SLG in the
aggregate amount of PKR 310,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Three Hundred Ten Million; and (2)
cash tranche and mark-up thereof aggregating PKR 34,448,998 (Pak Rupees Thirty Four
Million Four Hundred Forty Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Eight), shall be converted
into equity @ approximately PKR 12.75/- (Pak Rupees Twelve and Seventy Five Paisas) per
SLG Share, based on a discount of approximately 15% (fifteen percent) of the market value of
the SLG Shares on February 4, 2025. It is clarified that the finance facility provided by Habib
Bank Limited is backed by a stand by letter of credit arranged by PAK, which loan / facility
shall be assumed by PAK (and assigned in favour of PAK) against the full release and
discharge of SLG’s obligations towards Habib Bank Limited prior to the Completion Date.
Consequently, upon the sanction of this Scheme, against the aggregate amount of PKR
344,448,998/- (Pak Rupees Three Hundred Forty Four Million Four Hundred Forty Eight
Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Eight) payable by SLG to PAK (upon the occurrence of the
above), SLG shall allot and issue an aggregate of 27,015,608 (Twenty Seven Million Fifteen
Thousand Six Hundred Eight) SLG Shares (rounded up to adjust for fractional shares) in
favour of PAK (or his nominee(s), as determined by him), credited as fully paid up, at par. The
said allotment shall be carried out within 10 (ten) working days of the Completion Date in
accordance with the rules and regulations of the CDC. The SLG Shares, allotted and issued in
the manner detailed above, shall, in all respect, rank pari passu with the ordinary shares of
SLG and shall be entitled to all dividends declared by SLG after the Completion Date.
Approval of the members of SLG to this Scheme shall also include and constitute an approval
by way of special resolution, from the members of SLG to the aforementioned conversion of
the loan and issuance of the SLG Shares in favour of PAK (and / or his nominee(s)).

In consideration for the Arrangement:

(i) Upon Sanction of this Scheme

(a) SLG shall allot and issue an aggregate of 116,921,307 (One Hundred Sixteen Million
Nine Hundred Twenty One Thousand Three Hundred Seven) SLG Shares in favour of
the Trax Arrangement Shareholders, credited as fully paid up, at par, on the basis of

a swap ratio of approximately 1.794 SLG Shares for every 1 (one) Trax Arrangement
Share, held by each Trax Arrangement Shareholder (which shall stand cancelled) (the
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

“Swap Ratio”). All entitlements resulting in fractions less than a SLG Share shall be
consolidated into whole SLG Shares which shall be disposed of / dealt with by SLG in
a manner determined by the Board of Directors of SLG. All entitlements of the Trax
Arrangement Shareholders shall be determined in the proportion aforesaid.

The Swap Ratio has been determined and approved by the respective Board of
Directors of SLG and Trax from the range provided and confirmed in the Swap Letter,
which is in-turn based on the calculations and valuations detailed therein. The fair
value assessment, as detailed in the Swap Letter, has been performed under the
income based approach and market based approach, with the valuation cut-off as of
September 30, 2024, based, inter alia, on the special purpose financial statements of
the respective companies for the period ended September 30, 2024, financial
projections of the companies and other related information, including the
assumptions provided by the companies. The Swap Letter has been adopted by the
respective Board of Directors of each of SLG and Trax.

Subsequent to the Completion Date, at least 7 (seven) days’ notice shall be given to
the members of Trax, by Trax, specifying the Record Date in order to determine the
identities of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders and their entitlements. Such notice
shall also specify the date by which all the members shall deliver to Trax, for
cancellation, all the share certificates representing the Trax Shares held by them and
such share certificates shall be delivered to Trax on or before that date.

Trax shall, within 7 (seven) days of the Record Date, provide SLG with the list of the
Trax Arrangement Shareholders along with details of their respective entitlements
(based on the Swap Ratio).

The share certificates delivered / to be delivered by the Trax Arrangement
Shareholders in accordance with Article 8.2(i)(c) shall stand cancelled (whether or
not the same have been surrendered to Trax by the prescribed date) and the Trax
Arrangement Shareholders shall be entitled to share certificates / CDC book-entries
representing the number of fully paid up SLG Shares to which the respective Trax
Arrangement Shareholder is entitled to in accordance with the provisions of this
Scheme. Furthermore, in accordance with Article 6.3(i), Trax shall issue the Trax Re-
organization Shares in favour of SLG (and its nominee(s)).

The allotment of the SLG Shares (in accordance with the provisions of this Article
8.2(i)) shall be made by SLG within 10 (ten) working days from the date notified
above. In this respect, SLG shall (cause CDC to) credit the respective CDC accounts /
sub-accounts of the relevant Trax Arrangement Shareholders with book entries
relating to the corresponding number of SLG Shares which the relevant Trax
Arrangement Shareholder is entitled to in accordance with this Article 8.2(i). Such
allotment shall be carried out in accordance with the rules and regulations of the
CDC.

The SLG Shares, allotted and issued to the Trax Arrangement Shareholders in
accordance with the provisions of this Article 8.2(i), shall, in all respect, rank pari
passu with the ordinary shares of SLG and shall be entitled to all dividends declared
by SLG after the Completion Date.

For the purposes of this Scheme, and the entitlements of the Trax Arrangement
Shareholders to SLG Shares accruing from time to time in accordance with the
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(ii)
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(iif)
(a)

(b)

provisions hereof, the list of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders shall be as existing
and finalized as of the Record Date.

Upon Achievement / Fulfilment of the KPIs

As part of the consideration for the Arrangement, and subject to the fulfilment /
achievement of the KPIs by Trax on or before the KPI Achievement Date, in the
manner detailed in Annexure E, SLG shall allot and issue SLG Shares, of the applicable
guantum stipulated in Annexure E, in favour of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders,
credited as fully paid up, at par.

It is clarified that the said commercial arrangement under this Article 8.2(ii) has been
factored into the consideration for the Arrangement, and constitutes an upfront
provisional allocation of SLG Shares in favour of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders
for valid consideration, the allotment of which will be contingent upon the fulfilment
and achievement of the KPIs, whereafter the same will be issued in favour of the
Trax Arrangement Shareholders.

For the purposes of determining the achievement of the KPIs by Trax, SLG shall cause
a special review / audit (as determined by the Board of Directors of SLG) of the
accounts of Trax for the period ended as of the KPI Achievement Date, which shall be
binding on all parties for the purposes of the Scheme and the allotment of SLG
Shares.

The relevant quantum of SLG Shares shall be allotted and issued in favour of the Trax
Arrangement Shareholders (based on their entitlements inter se existing on the
Record Date), without any additional consideration, within 15 (fifteen) working days
of the completion of the special audit stipulated above, in accordance with the rules
and regulations of the CDC. All entitlements resulting in fractions less than a SLG
Share shall be consolidated into whole SLG Shares which shall be disposed of / dealt
with by SLG in a manner determined by the Board of Directors of SLG.

The SLG Shares, allotted and issued to the Trax Arrangement Shareholders in
accordance with the provisions of this Article 8.2(ii), shall, in all respect, rank pari
passu with the ordinary shares of SLG and shall be entitled to all dividends declared
by SLG after the KPI Achievement Date.

Upon issuance of ESOS Shares

As part of the commercial arrangement between the companies under this Scheme,
SLG shall formulate and implement an employee stock option scheme, in terms of
which SLG shall offer, and subsequently (upon subscription thereof) issue, SLG
Shares in favour of its employees and employees of its group companies, which SLG
Shares shall constitute 3% (three percent) of the issued and paid up share capital of
SLG (on a fully diluted basis) (the “ESOS Shares”).

The said employee stock option scheme, including the terms thereof, shall be
developed and approved by the Board of Directors of SLG, and shall be subject to all
requisite approvals of members and regulatory approvals applicable. Approval of the
members of SLG to this Scheme shall include and constitute an in-principle approval
of the members of SLG for issuance of the ESOS Shares.
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8.3.

8.4.

(c) Consequently, and as part of the consideration for the Arrangement, as and when
ESOS Shares are issued by SLG (from time to time) pursuant to the said employee
stock option scheme, SLG shall simultaneously allot and issue additional SLG Shares
in favour of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders, credited as fully paid up, at par, of
such quantum so as to maintain their respective shareholding ratios, existing as a
consequence of the issuance of SLG Shares in accordance with Articles 8.2(i) and (ii)
(subject to making any adjustments in the event that the Trax Arrangement
Shareholders have disposed of any SLG Shares in the interim period).

(d) It is clarified that the said commercial arrangement under this Article 8.2(iii) has
been factored into the consideration for the Arrangement, and constitutes an
upfront provisional allocation of additional SLG Shares in favour of the Trax
Arrangement Shareholders for valid consideration, the allotment and issuance of
which will be carried out from time to time pro rata to the allotment and issuance of
ESOS Shares.

(e) The SLG Shares, allotted and issued from time to time to the Trax Arrangement
Shareholders in accordance with the provisions of this Article 8.2(iii), shall, in all
respect, rank pari passu with the ordinary shares of SLG and shall be entitled to all
dividends declared by SLG after the date of issuance (from time to time).

The SLG Shares shall be issued from time to time free from any and all encumbrances or
Securities, except as stated in this Article 8.3. The Trax Arrangement Shareholders agree to
be treated as joint “Sponsors” of SLG for the purposes of the Public Offering Regulations,
2017, along with the existing sponsors of SLG in the manner detailed below.

(i) Currently, 71,562,138 (Seventy One Million Five Hundred Sixty Two Thousand One
Hundred Thirty Eight) SLG Shares (comprising approximately 26.15% of the current
issued and paid-up capital of SLG), being a portion of the SLG Shares held by the
existing sponsors of SLG, are in a blocked account with the CDC in accordance with
Regulation 5(3) for a period of 3 (three) years, starting from the date of listing i.e.
April 22, 2024.

(ii) It is agreed that subsequent to the issuance of SLG Shares in accordance with Articles
8.1 and 8.2(i), 26.15% of the revised / updated issued and paid up capital of SLG, i.e.
109,196,149 (One Hundred Nine Million One Hundred Ninety Six Thousand One
Hundred Forty Nine) SLG Shares shall be treated as sponsor shares, and shall be kept
in a blocked account maintained with the CDC for the remaining period of ending on
April 21, 2027. Consequently, the blocked shares will be contributed on a pro-rata
basis by SLG’s existing sponsors and the Trax Arrangement Shareholders. For the
purposes of the same, the said shareholders, as joint ‘Sponsors’, shall apply to the
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purposes of the above.

Any SLG Shares to be allotted and issued under this Scheme from time to time, including as a
consequence of the Arrangement, in accordance with the provisions of this Article 8, in
favour of foreign / non-resident Trax Arrangement Shareholders, against the Trax Shares /
Trax Arrangement Shares held by each of them, that have been registered and / or are held
and / or are in the process of being registered with the State Bank of Pakistan, on repatriable
basis, shall be deemed to be issued and held on repatriable basis (or deemed to be in the
same process of registration). Such SLG Shares shall have the same rights and benefits under
the foreign exchange laws of Pakistan as the Trax Arrangement Shares (prior to the
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8.5.

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

10.1.

10.2.

cancellation thereof), and shall be registered by SLG (through an authorized dealer) with the
State Bank of Pakistan upon issuance thereof.

Upon the allotment of the SLG Shares in favour of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders from
time to time in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme, the entitlements of the Trax
Arrangement Shareholders under this Scheme shall stand satisfied.

ARTICLE 9
CHANGE IN FINANCIAL YEAR OF TRAX

Upon the sanction of this Scheme, the financial year of Trax shall stand revised and amended
to be from the first day of January of each year to the 31* day of December of such year to
bring the same in line with the financial year of SLG (which will become the holding company
of Trax as a consequence of the Arrangement).

Without prejudice to anything in Article 9.1 above, including the effectiveness thereof, Trax
shall fulfil any documentary formalities / filings for the purposes of the same.

Approval of the members of Trax to this Scheme shall also include and constitute an approval
by way of special resolution from the members of Trax to the change in the financial year of
Trax.

ARTICLE 10
GENERAL
Modifications by the Court

This Scheme shall be subject to such modification of conditions, as the Court may deem
expedient to impose. The Board of Directors of SLG and Trax respectively may consent to any
modifications or additions to this Scheme or to any conditions which the Court may think fit
(without seeking any further approvals). In case of any difficulty in implementation of any
aspect of this Scheme, clarifications, directions and / or approvals may be obtained from the
Court. Notwithstanding the above, in the event that the terms of this Scheme are not
approved by the members and / or creditors of SLG and / or Trax (as applicable) in its entirety
and / or the Scheme, as approved by the respective companies, is modified by the Court, the
Board of Directors of SLG and / or Trax shall be entitled to withdraw this Scheme (whether or
not approval from the members and creditors of the respective companies has been
obtained).

Severability
If any provision of this Scheme is found to be unlawful and unenforceable by a competent

court of law, then to the fullest extent possible, all of the remaining provisions of the Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect.
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10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

Annexures

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Annexures to this Scheme
shall be subject to modification / revision (to the extent permitted under this Scheme and /
or to rectify any errors) so as to accurately and validly reflect the position existing as of the
Completion Date, or thereafter, and all provisions contained herein shall be interpreted and
construed accordingly.

Costs and expenses

All costs, charges and expenses in respect of the preparation of this Scheme and carrying the
same into effect shall be borne by SLG and Trax (in the manner mutually agreed between the
said companies). Subsequent to the sanction of this Scheme, costs, charges and expenses
(including stamp duty on issuance of shares by SLG or Trax, as the case may be) shall be
borne by the respective companies in accordance with the applicable laws, or as otherwise
agreed between the companies, including for the implementation of this Scheme.

Implementation of this Scheme

The respective Board of Directors of SLG and Trax, to the extent applicable, are hereby
authorized and empowered to take all necessary steps and execute all documents, as they
may consider necessary, expedient or appropriate, to give effect to the provisions of this
Scheme and for the implementation hereof, including to delegate any powers from time to
time.
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“Annexure A”

“Annexure B”

“Annexure C”

“Annexure D”

“Annexure E”

“Annexure F

LIST OF ANNEXURES
Organograms of (i) SLG on a stand-alone basis; (ii) Trax on a stand-along basis;
and (iii) the companies as a consequence of the Arrangement

List / details of the (i) Trax Arrangement Shareholders, as on the date of this
Scheme; and (ii) corresponding Trax Arrangement Shares to be cancelled.

List of current members of Board of Directors of SLG.
List of current members of Board of Directors of Trax.

Details of the KPIs, along with the corresponding entitlement of SLG Shares in
favour of the Trax Arrangement Shareholders.

Swap Letter dated February 14, 2025, issued by BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered
Accountants.
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ANNEXURE A

ORGANOGRAMS

Organogram of SLG on a stand-alone basis
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Organogram of the companies as a consequence of the Arrangement
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ANNEXURE B

DETAILS OF THE TRAX ARRANGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS AND THE CORRESPONDING
TRAX ARRANGEMENT SHARES TO BE CANCELLED

Number of Trax Shares to be
Name of Trax Arrangement .
shareholder Cancelled (i.e. As part of the
Trax Arrangement Shares)
Trax Global Pte. Limited 65,189,999
Mr. Muhammad Hassan Khan* 1
Total 65,190,000

* Note: As a nominee of Trax Global Pte. Limited
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ANNEXURE C

LIST OF CURRENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED

Mr. Faraz Mehmood Minai
Mr. Pervaiz A. Khan
Mr. Gulraiz A. Khan

Mrs. Afshan Nasir

Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha
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ANNEXURE D

LIST OF CURRENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TRAX ONLINE (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Mr. Muhammad Hassan Khan

Mr. Asad Abdulla
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ANNEXURE E

DETAILS OF THE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND ENTITLEMENT TO SLG SHARES

Quantum of SLG Shares to be issued in

I\Sl; KPI favour of the Trax Arrangement
) Shareholders pursuant to Article 8.2(ii)
Trax achieves a profit after tax of PKR 12,003,245 (Twelve Million Three

400,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Four Hundred Million)
or more as of the KPI Achievement Date.

Thousand Two Hundred Forty Five)
additional SLG Shares

(2)

Trax achieves a profit after tax of PKR
300,000,000/~ (Pak Rupees Three Hundred Million)
as of the KPI Achievement Date.

5,917,425 (Five Million Nine Hundred
Seventeen Thousand Four Hundred
Twenty Five) additional SLG Shares

Trax achieves a profit after tax of more than PKR
300,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Three Hundred
Million), but less than PKR 400,000,000/- (Pak
Rupees Four Hundred Million), as of the KPI
Achievement Date.

Additional number of SLG Shares,
which is pro-rated between the
guantums stipulated at Serial Nos. (1)
and (2) above.

Trax achieves a profit after tax of less than PKR
300,000,000/~ (Pak Rupees Three Hundred Million)
as of the KPI Achievement Date.

No additional SLG Shares to be issued
under Article 8.2(ii)
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SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED
BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST

For the Special Business at the Extraordinary General Meeting of Secure Logistics Group Limited
(the “Company”) to be held on Friday, March 28”’, 2025 at 3 p.m at the Islamabad Stock
Exchange Board Room, Ground Floor, 55-B, ISE Tower, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad, as well as
through electronic means.

Designated email address of the Company at which the duly filled in ballot paper may be sent:

investorrelation@slg.com.pk

Name of shareholder / Joint shareholder(s) / Proxy
Holder(s)

Registered Address:

Folio / CDC Participant / Investor 1D with sub-account
No.

Number of shares held

CNIC / Passport No. (in case of foreigner)
(copy to be attached)

Additional Information and enclosures (In case of representative of body corporate, corporation
and Federal Government)

Name of Authorized Signatory:

CNIC / Passport No. (in case of foreigner) of
Authorized Signatory — (copy to be attached)

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions through postal ballot by
conveying my/our assent or dissent to the following resolution by placing tick (v') mark in the
appropriate box below:

ch. of I/We assent | I/We dissent
ordinary
Sr. . . to the to the
Nature and Description of resolutions shares for . .
No. which votes Resolutions Resolutions
(FOR) (AGAINST)
cast
1. Agenda item no. A

Pursuant to the Order of the Honourable Islamabad
High Court, Islamabad dated February 27, 2025,
passed in Application bearing C. M. No. 2 of 2025, in
Petition bearing Company Original No. 3 of 2025, to
consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification, the following resolution for, inter alia (i)
the corporate reorganization / re-arrangement of the
entire shareholding of Trax Online (Private) Limited,
comprising the vesting of the same in the Company;
and (ii) the corporate reorganization of the Company,
involving converting certain shareholder loans into
shares of the Company, along with all ancillary
matters thereto, in accordance with the Scheme of
Arrangement dated February 24, 2025, as approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company on




February 4, 2025:

RESOLVED THAT the Scheme of Arrangement dated
February 24, 2025, prepared under the provisions of
Sections 279 to 283 and 285(8) of the Companies Act,
2017, as approved by the Board of Directors, for, inter
alia (i) the corporate reorganization / re-arrangement
of the entire shareholding of Trax Online (Private)
Limited, comprising the vesting of the same in Secure
Logistics Group Limited (the “Company”); and (ii) the
corporate reorganization of the Company, involving
converting certain shareholder’s loans into shares of
the Company, along with all ancillary and incidental
matters thereto, placed before the meeting for
consideration and approval, be and is hereby
approved and adopted, along with any modifications
/ amendments required, or conditions imposed by
Honourable Islamabad High Court, Islamabad, subject
to sanction by the Honourable Islamabad High Court,
Islamabad, in terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017.

NOTES:

1.

Dully filled postal ballot should be sent to the Company of Secure Logistics Group Limited
through post at 10" Floor, New State Life Tower, Blue Area, Islamabad Capital Territory,
Islamabad (Attention of the Company Secretary) OR through the registered email address of the
shareholder at investorrelation@slg.com.pk

Copy of CNIC / Passport No. (in case of foreigner) should be enclosed with the postal ballot
form.

Postal ballot forms through post or email should reach the Company by March 27", 2025
before 5:00 p.m. Any postal ballot received after this date and time will not be considered for
voting.

Signature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNIC / Passport No. (in case of
foreigner).

Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot paper will be

rejected.

This postal Poll paper is also available for download from the website of Secure Logistics
Group Limited at www.slg.com.pk Shareholders may download the ballot paper from website
or use the same ballot paper as published in newspapers.

Signature of shareholder(s)/ Proxy Holder(s)/Authorized Signatory
(In case of corporate entity, please affix company stamp)

Place:

Date:




SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED
FORM OF PROXY

I/We of

r/o

being a member(s) of Secure Logistics Group Limited and holder of

ordinary shares as per share register folio no.

and / or CDC Participant I.D. No.

and Sub Account No. hereby appoint Mr. / Mrs.

of r/o

as my / our proxy to attend

and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the

Company to be held on March 28™ 2025 and /or any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2025.

Witnesses:

1) Signature:

Name:

Address:

CNICor:

Passport No.:

2) Signature:

Name:

Address:

CNICor:

Passport No.:




s fe=,  SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED

Secure Logistics GrouP NOTICE OF EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Thix is in méorm you that pursusnt b e Order of the Honourable slamebad Hgh Court, Islamobad dated Febmuary 37, 20268,
passed in Applicaton bearing O ML Na. 2 al 3025, n Peition beanng Cofmgany Onginal Mo 3 ol 2025 ithe “Order”l an
Estraordinary Groermd Mashng (Y“ECGM''| of Secum Logistics. Group Limitad (the ‘Company™} wil beheld on Foday,
farch 2. 2025 al 3:00 gor: al the |alamabad Stock Exchanpe Board Roorn, Graunt Floor, 53-8 |5E Tower, Jinnah Avenve,
Eslamanad, ncluding through vadaa link teciify, 1otransact the fiowing business

A Special Busmess

Pursuant to the Order, o corsider and, if thought fit o pass with or wishout moddfication, the folowng resalubon dor, inder alin
(i) the corporalbe reargamzation / re-arfangemednt of e entire EhEh'Ehl:IHﬂg af Traes Onilne (Prdate) Limited, comansing the
wasting of the samr in the Company, and {ii] the corpomate reorganization of the Compamy, invséving convarting cerain
sharetclder's ians inlo shares of e Comparny, skong with ail analiary matlers therels, nacoordances wilh he Schere of
Arangemeant daten Februany 24, 2025, a5 approvad by e Bosrd ol Drectorz atihe Company on Fabmiary 4, 2025

The progdsed resalubion b e pessed by the requisile riajandy of merrbers of the Company undsr Sechons 278 and 2B2 of
e Companies At 201 T s as under

'RESOLVED THAT tie Schame of Arangensnt dated Febraary 24 2025, prepares under (he provisions of Sections 2700
2EF and F85{6) of the Companies Aot M0MF, as approved by the Board of Directors, for, inler sl (1) 1he coporete
reinganicalion  re-arangermenl of the enfire sharefnlding of Trax Online: [Private) Limiled, camprsing the vesling af lhe
=ame In Secure Logistics Group Limitad (he ‘Company ) and (1) the cofporate reomganizabicn of the Company, invaluing
converting cerain sherehoider's ioans into shares of the Company, mlong with all andliery and ncdental matters

placed Defars the meeting toe consideranon and approval.'be and i herety apordvacd and adopted. along weh Gny
madificatans | amendmens required, ar condilions imaazsed oy Honourahle Isamabad High Caurd, lslamahad, subect o
saRcian by e Honouwable Elarmabad High Cour, 1ssamabed in lemms alihe previsionsal the Companiesset, 2077 °

The Scheme of &mangement will be suhject to the subseguentsancton of ihe Honourable Isamahesd Hign Coor, [slamabad
B. AryOiharBusiness
Toriransadct any olher business hat mey be placsd bedone the meaeling with 1he permssion ol the Chair,
Hy oroerottha Homd
Falzal Atta
Iarch 7lh, 2025 Company Seoebary

elees:

1. The share bansier books: of the Company wil remain closed from fdarch 21, 2025 4o March 30, 2025 (bath day=
Inzluande]. Transiers recenved In order st the afice of the Company's share registrar. Central Depositony Compary of
Paxistan Lemdnn, COC House, 250E, Blozk "B, S M C H 5, Main Sharah-n-Faisal, Karchl, by tha closa of business on
Riarch 20, 2025 will 22 Ireated i lime for he delerminalen of erdifement of memnbes o aflend and wole atthe EOOM.

2. Amember ofthe Company entiiled toattend ane woite at the EQGW may apprend another member 25 his §hee proaoy who
shall hawe such ghis as respects atlendwng, speaking and wolng & the EQOM as afeavailabie ica membar A meamber
shall not e antied o appoint mon tharona pmosyg, & prosy neesd rokbo & mamberofibe Company

3, Procedurs nchuding the guidelines as lad down inCroular o - Reference Mo, 3 5-41 Mesc/ARDVLESDE dated JanLany

26 LY issund by Eocuritins & E rnhnrgr: Commmsinr ofFakisian

(Il Tiembers, provkes o nominess shall aumenticate their ety by showng Thelr original national Kantity Serd or
original passpor and bring thek folic remesars ottt tima of atlanding the EOGM

() B tha paso of 4 corporatie arlity, 1 Boamd of Direstors’ sesolution | posar of sitamsy snd atlosted copy ol fe CNIC
or passpot of the nemiraa shall also ba producad {unlese provided earlar) at the ima of tha meeting.

(i) B ordar b bo offoclive, tha prosy laims -most bo reseiead al o Slice o he Company's Sharo Bog=liar ai tha
reglsbered office of e Compeny, nol lates an 48 hours belorg he mestog. duly slgned snd stamosd @and
whitnssed by b parsoos with thairpames, address, CHIC numbers and sigraefures.

(i By fheocese of indeviduals, aibesied copiss of CMIC or passpon al (he benelical owners and he prosy shall be
furn=had with b procy form

(] Bnche case of proxy Dy & oorpalete entfty, the Board of Directors resalution ! power af alorneay and attest=) copy of
the GHIG or passport of the prowy shadl be submitted alongwith proxy form

4. Online Particlpation in the Extracsdinary General Meeting

In order to maemize (he member's parbopation, the Compesy s comening this EQGRM via video link in addilion o
nalding physacal masang wich the mambens, Accordinghy Mose members and permited paricipants whio desire online
parbcipation in the ECHGM are requested foregister tiemselves by sending an emal along with following pacticulees and
vakd capy of bath sides al-hair CHNIC atinvesiormsiatonii sy com.plkowih siyect ol ' EQGM of Secure Logistics Grodp
Lirritesd' ne lass an d8 hours before the Bme of the meeting

Rame af Merdber | CHIC Mo, Falky Ho | CRC Aceaunt Na Cell ko Errenl Address

Wik Link o' i thes ECEM will be shared withoonly those meambers whoas emell. containing sl he reduised and aorect
partodars, am hmnlr’ mcannd.at nmn:ml.nhrmp.m aompk Tha mamberes can .ajm |'|rmrrh Erair commants and
spentions for e agenda ems af he EOGM on this email eddress.

% Provislon of Videno | ink anllh]l'

IFhe Company recaives ademand [l least T days helors the date ot maanng) fram sharehokieris | holding an aggregate
1% or more sharaholding residing in any athar ciy 30 participse in the EOGM through video link, e Company will
Bfrange videoink Tacility intat oty (subjest o evailetiliny thereot in sech oty

Membems, whnwish to pardicpate thmugh video-link faciity, are requested o fill In Video Link Faclity Form available ak
Cormpainy's wabsite and send & duly Soned copy 10 1he registered address of the Company, sauated a2 10th Floor, Kew
Gtare | Tower, Blue Grma |samabad, Capded Terriong, mlmabad. § may be noted thet oo poreon ather than the
heiieror procy bodder canatiend themeaeslivng through viden link fasilily.

f: Polling boothwill be ratablished at the plaoe of nhysical gatheringofthe EOGRM forvating,
T, E-Voaing s Postal Ballot

Membems are hereby nofified thal pusuant to the Companies | Postel Ballol) Requlrions, 2016, read with Sedlions 145-
144 o the Comparnies At 2017, and SRO 219201 V2022 tated Dacamber 5, 2028, mermars will be alawed fo exercise
therrightto vose for the special business in acoordance with thie conditinrs mentioned thersin The following options are
Bairg prow ded b membecs far valing

(I}  E\oting Frocadure

fa| Dhetalis of fhe a-voting faclity will be shared thraugh ane-mal with thase members ot the Compeny wig iisve thelr
ualid GG rumsnem, coll numsars, and m-ma sddressas available in e mgrster of members of the Gompany by
he cleas aThuainess o March 20, 2025

Ib]  Thewsh addrass, Ingm datalls and password will e comman icatad iomambers wa emal. The security codeswil be
communiceied b members theough SRS and email fom web podal of the s-wafing s=rsce prosider

foy karity of the membars intendsl] ta cast vota through E-Yoting shall be autheaticated through slectnonic sijnature
arauthedteationforlogin

[¢] E-¥oling lines wil start frorn March 268, 2025, 9:00 2 m.and sl dlose on bann 27, 2025 at 500 pur, Membars can
rast thor yabps any bz during this ponad . Cince the yole on a mespdution s cast by a8 member, he £ she shall not be
alhowed o change i subssquenily

1] Paetal Hallot

3] Membersmay olerratively oplfor uoting trrough posial bafiot, Balll Paper shell oisc be pesilabie for downloed from
e wahsie of 1ha E-I:IITIFAH"I}' BT Elg.w of Use the Eame as aanexed fo 1his Nobce ard putished in
NENRPPRETE

(b Themerrbers ahadlensurs Ihel duly Tlled and signed Bellal paper. alang wilh 2oy of Compulerzed Maliona fdentiy
Cart (GHEG) xnoule reaph thn r}rrpnrry through poat a2 1ith Floor, Naw Stain Lite Tower, B drna . Isiwmabad
Capilal Termboey, Islamabad (Aention of the Corpany Satretary) OR Uraugh the regidaered emad addresaof the
mamhes at nvestnmeatongsig com pk with subgect of BEGGM of Sacure Logistics (Grup Lmdeo by Warch 27,
2025 bafore 5:00 pm The sigrature on the bl paper snall maich with the aignmure an GHIG A posta beilct
neEi e Alter thes e dabe-shal nol be considerad fauoting.

(o | Please note the in case of any disputs in weting induding thie casting of mane than ona vote, she Cheirman of the
mesting shal be the decidng sulhariy,

B, Provision of irdormstion oy Members:

T coenply with various stafoiony requiraments, and toawvald &ny noa-compiis noeaf 1B or Sy inconwenisnce Infutane, &1l
mambers are herehy ndvised o coordinete Supdate their rmoaeds with sheir respective Paicipank’ COC Invastor Accounk
Servicas | the Company's Share Ragisirar in connection with fathesing.

- HBubmission of copies of their yabkd ¢ |J|‘|‘|I‘|‘h‘.f| GNIC § NTH Cenidicate ¢ Zokat Declarmton [Evemehion) Form | Tow
Exerngbon Certilicale:

= Provision of relavant detalts including vallid banh soooirt datalls ¢ IBAN Inordar o enabha he Sompamy o pay any
unciaimed [ Tutures cysh dhedend s, ifany

- IncasealsJointsccount, provision of sharehodding propertions sebeeen Principal shareholderand foint Holder 5}

- Canuertthes physical shares info sonp bnss form, which will slso facilitate the: members hanting physical shares in
many ways, including sefe cisiody. eMoeentireding and convenence inosher corgarale actkns.

- Proviglken of mancstnry regiatraton dads interms of Soctinn 118 of 1kr Companinsact, 2T and Reaquiagion 145 of
e Compamias {Genaral Provigions and Forrms) Reguiations, 7118, indlding mobdle aumber {Tanding rumberand
small addrass (if availakia).

= Promptly nodify any change in meiing address, email addmss and mobile naomber by writing o the office of the
Company's Share Regstrar

9 Copies of the Memorandum and Aricles of Associstion of the Compeny; Statemend under Sedlion 134{3) of the
CEI’I’IPEM‘E Ack, 207 n I"ESPEC{ of tna mareral facts of the special buskmess:. StaRmant pnder S2ction 281 af the
Comparins At 2017 Bcheme of Amangement dated Febmuary 22, 2025, Letter dabed Febnuary 74, 20025 isseed b_-,,-
EDO Ebralem & Co., Charersd Accountants; te-annual auciled fingncial statementa of e Company Tar the Tnancial
vear anded December 39, 7023 tha sprciaty audted financinl stmamems of the I‘:nrnpru\y inr thn prrisd ended
Sapterrier 30, 2024, gnd any alher information felevanl o lhe spedal budiness in respas of the Company shal be
avaitabia upan regass, ano for Inapectian, by amy person snbtied 1o ettend the ECGM from the reqiamsnad ofica of the
Compamy, iocmed ol 10h Fioor, New Bisde Life Tower, Blue Aren. Sslamabod Capitpl Temilony, |sdiemabod, free of cost
dunng rormal sMoe hours, Trom the date of this petics T Hia conclosion af the EOGW. The sald Information shail also be
pinoed forinspretinn of members ofthe Compeny dodng the EQGWM

10. The natice of tha ECGR &long wih iha sietements, tha Schame of Aranpamant. the labesl annusl aucdtad inancial
wtmiements, and the specially oudited financial statermarnts of the Lompany hnve alss been pleced on the webste of the
Cam pary

Statemert undersection ofthe Co nies Act, H T conceming the Specisl Business

Tha gtatamant paaiming ko ta matonal facks of thaapacial husinnss 1o ba rensacied af tha EOGM, IrEludng he netuire and

interesis of fhe directors of the Company with respect bo the Scheme of Amanpement. glong wibk &y ancillery informetion,

rnay be ahlalne Lpen teqUeEst by any parsan etited [0 Bfend the EDGM fram the saqisterad omce of the Company Situated
mt 10t Flopr, Wewy State Lie Tower, BhaeArea, Islomebad f‘npﬂrllTrn-'n":, Istamahmd, free of cost during rormal offics hours

The atorasals scatement has been sertalong vt 1he notice of ECGM 1n the mamasrs
Staterment undar section 281 of the Companies Act, 2017 soneerning the Specinl Business

The stetemant uncer sechon ?H'I:']][n_: ofiha E:-r_.rrlrmim Aot 20T sritng toribthe tarms of Sconme nf.l'!.rr:u'gu;-.mr'_,rrl and
explaiaton af its elecds ncddirg e tereas of (ke direcion ol ihes Sompany, and e efect ol hase intersdta alomeg willh
othier ancilisny imformator, may he otbained upon mguast by Any parson antiias b Attand e EOGM fom tha regiatarad
office af the Compieny sifunsed ot 101h Floor, New Staée Life Tower BlugArea, Blamabad Cegilal Terdinry, Islnmebad, free of
coEtdurngnarmal afice hours

The aloresaid slabement has beensenialong wilth (he redice ol EDGRM {0 the membiers

[~ [

Secure Logistics Group

SECURE LOGISTICS GROUP LIMITED

BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST

For tha Speclal Bueinese & tha Extrsordnary Ganeral Maating of Sacure
Losgisligs Group Lirmited (e "Company®) 10 b hesd on Friday, Mangh 28ih,
20725 at 3 pon al the lRamabasd Stock Exchanga Boasd Rigam, Ground

Flooe, 55-B. I1SE Towsr, Jinnah Avenue. Islamabad. a5

RGN magna,

watl as through

Dersignassd amail addess ol e Cormeany al which Be duby Rledin baticy
Py b Rl i peioyPes OS] g, Com,

Proxy Holder(s)

HNama o shamboldar | Jort shambalders)

Ragistargd Address,

Folio / COC Partcipani | rwvestor 1D wath
Sub-accouni Mo

Murmibar of shares hold

{eopy W b altoched)

| GMIC | Passpod Mo, (in caso of farolgnar)

Angdanal Infarmation and enclinsurns [In cass of oprosentative
ol body rormocale, comporation and Fedeml Goverrrment)

Warmo of Authorizod Sigmalory:

CHIC ! Pasaport Mo, (in case af fofeigner) of
Authorized Signatory — (zopy to be atiachad) |

Ity brenety exerose rmylour vobe in respecl ol the fallowing rescluliong
thretigh postal Baliot by canweng myfour assant ordissen 1o &e folkwng

resolutiom by pladng fick [ mprcin she appmprinle box belmy

8. | Mature and Description| Mo, of
Hao. | of regolulions wrdirary
sharas for
rdhich volas
ask

I"e
agzant o
e
Rasoltions

(FOR}

1Va
digsont
to ks
Razolulions
{AGAINST)

1, | Agendaitemno A

Pursumne o tam Order o
ihe Honourabie
lslamatad High Court,
Islamabad dated
Febriary AT. 2025,
passed in Appdication
beanng C. M. Mo, 2 o
L1025 in Fotion boaring
Company Original Ho. 3
af 2025, o consider and,
# thought fi#, o pass, with
ar withoist modfication,
she i:\lnu.mg respdiution
for, inler &ia (i} lhe
Comorae raarganization
! re-amangemend ol the
antire sharehakding o
Traz  DCmline  [Private)
Lirnieed. comprising the
'ug','ﬂngnhrq same o thi
Corpary:  and (i) he
TOrIamsse raamanizaton
ol 1he Company;
Ny ng CDI‘I\'EI‘IIHQ
crrainsharcholder nans
inta sharas of the
Comparmy, shong with all
ancillary matlers heredo,
N accorgance wih tha
Scheme of Arrargemen
dated Febniary 24, 225,
as approved by the Board
af Direciors af  ihe
Ciompany an Fabruery 4,
2025

RESDIVED THAT tha
Scheme of Arangemerl
dated Febmuany 29, 2005,
arepared under dhe
provisions of  Saclons
474 tn 283 and dA5[AY o
ihe Coopanies Ao
#0717 ps approsed by tha
Hoard of Direclora, for
mser alla [1f the coporate
rmorganirakion  f res
amargament of the enfire
sharrhalding nf Trax
Dnilivex {Privated Limiled,
momprsng ta vesting o
fhe same in  Secure
LogiEhcs Group Limited
{fha "Company’); and {ii)
the corporate
renrganization. of the
Company  invoalving
canvarting certain
=heehoider's o inlo
ahares af the Company,
along wih all andillary
and incidertal matlers
jhorntn,  placad  beforn
ithe meeling for
cansularation and
npproval, be and s
naraby appraved and
ndopied  along with amy
madillcallons |
AManEMELE Mequired, o
condiboms  imposed by
Honourable lalamabad
High Cour, |slamnbad,
suDject i sanclion by the
Honpurakie  Elamabad
High Court. lalamabad, in
ferms of the prestsioe 5ol
ihe Companies Ack,
2007

MNOTES:

| Chdly frllmr prstal balint shodd be sant-to the l.":rrnpnr@l

ol Securs

Logishes Group Limited through post at 100h Floor, New Stake Like
Toavsd, Blig Araa, Islamatad Capoal Temiory, [smabad (AReniion of
the Company Sacretary) DR Bhrough the registerad smail addrexs of
e ahafancidar at investorreadonida|p.oor pi,

2 Copyaf CHIC! Passpord Mo |in chse of fonsaner) should be mncloses

wizh-the pastaibaliot torm.

1 Postal kallol fomms throwgh post ar sdaeil shooid resch the Comparny by
March 27th, 2025 betare 500 pm. A0y postal belol receted after

the= deie and brre will not be considered for

unbng

4 Sippatire on posted naliol should matd wih sigrature of CHIC

Passpor Ko {in cese of forsigner)

4 Imopmpisbe, unsd)nad. INcorrect, aataned, form, miditatad, over witten

bl paper el be rejecied

§ Thizprstal Poll papares alss availabie for downieed trom e webanin of
SHecure Logislics Group Limifed at wenw slg.oom ph Shansholders may
deryTyimad The DH"I’.‘T}'HPGI'“T.IN WeEBETE 0 LISa The SAMma balint paEEras

publzhed in newspapsrs

Signature of sharehalder(s) Prexy Holder(s)/Autharized Signatory
{In chse of comomte: rotity, please afie company sEmp)

Flace:
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